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CHAIR’'S REVIEW

it's my great pleasure to present this Annual Report for the first time as Chair of the Board of Governors. | was
honoured and delighted to be elected to this role and 1o accept the baton handed over 1o me by our previous Chair,
Nick Kuenssberg in December 2022. He had led the Board with verve and passion since 2016 and his untimely
death in October 2023 has been cause for great sadness for so many of us. Nick was a formidable advocate for
the students, staff and alumni of RCS and was justly proud of our role in delivering on both excellence and fair
access. He will be missed deeply.

While this last year has continued to be a time of great challenge financially for this institution, and a pericd of
continued recovery following the disruption and stress of the pandemic, it's also one in which we've been able to
come together to finalise our new Strategic Plan to guide the future direction of RCS up to 2030. Under the
headlines of People, Place and Promise, we lay out our vision of being A sustainable communily that nurtures,
supports and ceigbrates inclusive art making from grass roots lo world-leading performance and production. | am
very grateful 1o everyone who has contributed to the development of this plan, in particutar Dr Lois Fitch, Deputy
Principal, who has been key to bringing people together to generate the ideas and then shouldering the work of
drafting through to the final version. It is now up to us all to bring this plan to life over the next phase of the life of
RCS to 2030

The vision and plan will help us deal with all the challenges and opportunities we're faced with in this environment
of geo-political uncertainty and ever-reducing public funding. Despite these challenges we have managed to
contain our operating deficit (before gains and losses) to £112K. However, we continue to face significant cost
pressures, with for example increased expenditure on utiliies and pay awards, which are running ahead of our
current ability to grow our income. We have several plans (set out in the Strategic Plan - e.g., for new courses and
increased fundraising) and bids in place to the RCS Endowment Trust and the Scoftish Funding Council, which
together will help address these challenges.

Against this backdrop, it's of particular credit to all who contribute to RCS that this institution is again ranked among
the finest giobally, taking 6% place in the QS World Rankings for Performing Arts Education. This recognition is
hard-won, and I'd tke to pay tribute to all the students, staff, governors, trustees, and other supporters of this
institution for the essential parts each have played in making this achievement possible.

This past year has been very much one of transition following the pandemic to a period over which we strive 1o be
increasingly sustainable, both environmentally and financially, as well ensuring we offer our graduates the training
and experience they will require to be empowered and empowering artists out in their worlds.

RCS is very much an ensemble institution, just like the art-forms and disciplines we teach. As a result, there are
so many people to thank for their contributions to the many successes of our last year: my fellow govemors, the
trustees; our academic and professional services staff and, at the heant of all we do. our brilliant students who shine
while here and have such impact out in the world when they leave. | would like to thank Carol Main, who retired
after 9 years of outstanding service as a govemor. We are indeed a special place of people and of promise, one
led skillfully by our Principal Professor Jeffrey Sharkey and his senior leadership team. Thank you all for
your contributions to RCS.

Professor Dorothy Miell
Chair
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REPORT OF THE GOVERNORS
The Governors present their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2023.

Constitution

RCS is a company limited by guarantee and having capital divided into shares with a Company Registration
No.SC04703. it was incorporated as the Glasgow Athenaeum in December 1900, having been established in 1847
to provide further education for adults in the fields of commerce, science, and the arts. It is now an institution of
higher education and was awarded degree awarding powers for taught degrees by the Privy Council on 13 May 1964,

The terms of the constitution, membership, powers and proceedings of the Board of Governors are currently set down
in the Memorandum and Articles of Association as varied by, and in conformity with the provisions of, The Royal
Congertvatoire of Scotland Order of Council 2014 No. 268 as amended by The Royal Conservatoire of Scotland
Amendment Order of Council 2020 No.3.

RCS is recognised by HMRC as a charily and is registered with the Office of the Scottish Charity Regulator —
No.SC015855.

Corporate Structure

A representative of each of the key constituencies of RCS holds a block of shares. Those constituencies are: students
represented by the President of the Students’ Union; staff represented by their elected staff Governors; senior
management and Acadernic Board represented by the Principal; and the Chair representing the Board of Governors
and wider society. A descendant of one of RCS's philanthropic founding families also retains a shareholding.
Shareholders are entitied to vote at the Annual Gereral Meeting to which all staff, students and a wide range of
extemal stakeholders are invited with the opportunity to ask questions.

Principal activity

The principal activity of RCS is the provision of teaching, learning and research in, and for, the performing arts.
Programmes offered range from short courses for young children through to PhD and include all genres of the
performing arts and education.

Vision

A sustainable community that nurtures, supports and celebrates inclusive art making from grass rools to world-leading
performance and production.

Mission

For RCS's education engagement and research in the performing arts to be a catalyst to shape the future of ant
forms, artists and society.

Values

Creative courage
Compassion
Constructive challenge
Curiosity

Craft. rigour and talent
Community

8 & 8 % 5 &
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STRATEGIC REPORT

The Board of Govemors approved the Strategic Plan 2023-30 in June 2023

The vision, mission, values and objectives of our new plan can be viewed and will be evaluated through three
perspectives: people, place and promise within which are grouped 9 high level objectives. These are noted below
together with details of the strategy for achieverment and development and performance throughout the year.

People: Talen velopment

Objective 1. Talented and motivated staff who use artistic, research, professional and industry
developments to enhance the Conservatoire’s international leadership in multi-arts education from pre-HE
to all ages

The achievement of this objective is fundamental to the future success of the RCS as it underpins the key aspects
of quality of learning and teaching. advancement of research, enhancement of the student experience and
maintains the institution’s reputation as an international leader in the field.

To deliver this we will:

» Review, redesign and implemant a performance review process;

+ Design and implement a pay structure that reflects current and future needs of the RCS; the flexibility
required of both roles and individuals to be able to respond to changing needs in the future; and
encourages the embodiment of RCS values, behaviours, attitudes and performance;

+ Develop and implement a pay policy that is externally competitive s0 as to recruit and retain those needed
to ensure the RCS's success;

+ dentify, design and implement career pathways that recognise the value individuals bring beyond the
traditional hierarchy of progression and enables recognition of quality and added vaiue, as well as options
for talent development and succession planning;

* Broaden the range of non-pay benefits to reflect the differing range of prionties and value proposition our
staff assign to benefits;

+ Invest in staff develcpment, widen the range of research activity and create more space for coileagues to
bring their research into teaching content and practice.

The Board of Governors recognise that having a loyal, motivated staff who feel supported and empowered is
fundamental to RCS’s future success. A People and Culture committee has been established with an ambitious
agenda which includes a range of workstreams including pay and conditions, staff development and career
opportunities.

The annual Nationa!l Student Survey overall satisfaction score were an improvement on the previous year with
overall satisfaction at 73% (2022 63%) but it is recognised that there is work to do to understand areas where we
need o improve.

RCS was again ranked highly in the QS World Rankings at No 6 (2022: No 5)

The QESR Phase 1 review occurred during the year and the outcome expressed confidence in RCS's quality
arrangements. The review team identified as good practice that the institution has provided a range of opportunities
available for students to participate in decision making including the Student Experience Forum, annual staff-
student programme committees and student input 1o annual monitoring action plans.

RCS students, staff and alumni had high profile involvement at the Honours of Scotiand ceremony at St Giles
Cathedral, the Coronation celebration for King Charles,

Launched in 2014 our MEd in Teaching and Leaming in the Aris is designed to meet the professional development
needs of arts educators across all formal and informal education contexts and across all artforms. The MEd team
and recent graduates are currently collaborating with the international Teaching Artists Collaborative, The
Necessary Space and Creative Scotland in the development of a Scoftish arts and arts education hub and working
with Education Scotland on supporting the professional development of teachers in primary and secondary schools
sector in the arlg

In May 2023 our Athenaeum Fellows worked with colleagues at the University of St Andrews through SHARE
{Sciences, Humanities and Arts Research Exchange) fo host a Creative Health Symposium - an inter- and trans-
disciplinary gathering to push forward the research and engagement agenda around ‘creative heaith’, one of the
strands of our innovation Studio pilot. Delegates from the Conservatoire and the University were joined by
practitioners from industry for a day of discussion, presentations and performances, establishing a Creative Health
research group fo lead in this area. This work is being followed up at the Conservaloire by a commissioned project
to unearth the many aspects of creative health in the professional work of Conservatoire staff, within and beyond
the institution.
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Objective 2: Students and Graduates who create the future of performance and production, specialising
and coflaborating successfully

To deliver this we will:

« Build on our previous innovative curriculum reforms to refine existing programmes and introduce new
programmes which will refiect and respond to the changing landscape of performing arts education and
industry skills needs;

* Be bold, collaborative, more efficient and provide agency for our students and graduates to create,
develop and produce a more personal artistic vision, and ensure greater employability upon graduation
and foster cross-disciplinary dialogue and more personal and career management techniques

SOM undergraduate programmes have been re-validated for introduction in 23-24 and work continues for
SODDPF validations to commence in 24-25. The new curriculum introduces a portfolio of professional
preparation modules caffed Inter-disciplinary and extended practice which prioritise entrepreneurial, and
student led activity themed around areas such as digital arts innovation, inclusivity, sustainability. Many
colleagues who are currently at the forefront of the profession were heavily involved in the design of the
new curriculum bringing their considerable expertise into this enhancement of the student experience.

Leveraging networks to broker opportunities for students to engage with industry, film and production
students were this year able to spend time on a Russo brothers film set in Allanta where they received a
unigue insight into the world of filmmaking and spend time in the various specialist depariments.

The batlet graduation performance involving a collaboration with production and choreography and
involving the use of digital projection and involving mentoring from industry professionals is sector leading
and RCS is the onily UK schoo! producing such work.

The digital 'On the Verge' festival which was born out of necessity during the pandemic is developing as
an important strand within the MACCT programme with students creating original digital work. The skills
gained equip students for fulure employment and develop self-promotion/entrepreneurialism.

Student and alumni successes of note which continue fo maintain RCS profile include:

= Alumna Baichuan Hui (DPerf) who won first prize in the London international Music Competition
and the Besthoven Young Musician Competition

¢ Alvin Ho {Leverhuime Conducting Fellow) won First Prize in the Princess Astrid Conducting
Competition, hosted by the Trondheim Symphony Crchestra in Norway.
o Oliver Hak who the junior section of the Scottish International Youth Piano Competition in July,
2023,
Graduates of the first two cohorts of the BA Performance in BSL and English cortinue to change the
landscape of performance raising the profile of Ceaf performance and bringing #t to a wider audience
including the Edinburgh Deaf Festival curated by alumni Jamie Rea which runs alongside, and partners
with, the Fringe.

Otjective 3: RCS as partner-of-choice for prestigious forward-looking organisations, artistic leaders
and entrepreneurs

To deliver this we will:

+ continue to cultivate our relationships with organisations at all levels from national institutions and the
national performing arts companies through to emerging artists and companies via our innovation studio
and entrepreneurs in residence programme to enhance the learning, networking and future employment
opportunities for our students and seek 1o develop international partnerships which can leverage the
RCS's expertise and international standing.

RCS is in advanced discussions with Sharjah Performing Arts Academy (SPAA) in the United Arab
Emirates to develop a partnership which would see the provision of support and advice from RCS to SPAA
to assist it to expand its operation.

Discussions are also underway with Scottish Opera to re-shape opera provision at RCS and deepen the
relationship in a shared enterprise involving masters students on the brink of the profession.

The Conservatoire is a partner-of-choice for highly innovative organisations who want to make a
difference. in 2022-23, we enlered into a partnership with Starcatchers to deliver ‘the Voice of the Chiid’:
groundbreaking research into how young pre- and non-verbal children can exercise their rights - as
esfablished in the UN Charter on the Rights of the Child - through an aris based framework, RCS staff
have worked closely with colleagues at Starcatchers to develop research that is already informing a range
of resources for early years practitioners and arts organisations.

7
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We are aware that the fastest developing industry in the creative arts in Scotland is film and production,
with many new and estabiished companies choosing to film, produce and complete post-production here.
As a consequence we understand where the skilis gaps in the workforce are. Dialogue with a number of
partners in the screen sector such as Screen Scotland, BBC Studios and Blazing Griffin about how the
sector unites to meet the growing demand for talented and skilled employable professionals has been
stepped up and has informed the re-design of the filmmaking course, as well as thinking on development
of cognate programmes at Masters level such as music for film and screenwriting,

During the year the Principal was elected as Vice-President of the Association of European
Conservatoires which extends the reach and networking capabilities in behalf of RCS.

New Memoranda of Understanding have been signed with the following institutions during the year.

Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts

Princess Galayani Vadhana Institute of Music {Thailand)
Manhattan Schogl of Music

Eastman School of Music, University of Rochester

The Memorandum of Agreement with the National Piping Centre pertaining 1o the delivery of the BA
Traditional Music (Piping)} and Masters provision in piping was renewed,

Place: Size end Scope of RCS

Objective 4: Playing a prominent role in national cultural leadership, as well as enhancing our global artistic
and educational impact. Being active citizens of Glasgow, as well as having a positive creative impact
wherever we are,

To deliver this we will:

s Be strong advocates for the importance of high-quality arls education and to build our audiences both in
person and to widen that audience base through the production and promotion of selected digital content;

« Engage more consciously with diverse local communities in terms of both educational outreach and
performance activity to strengthen those links and to widen the recruitment pipeline;

»  Continue to play a lead role in the work of Music for Scotland to ensure that momentum is maintained in
the provision of sustained access o music education;

»  Engage with Glasgow City Council and other partners to explore future estate development options which
can contribute to the re-generation of the city centre and in particular to seek opportunities within the
Goiden Z initiative;

= Transform the existing Transitions programme fo improve access pathways to and opportunities in RCS
undergraduate programmes,

+  Explore opportunities for RCS to deveiop a more regular presence in other parts of the country.

Our pre-HE activities continue to evolve and as the range of SCQF credit-rated provision expands, there
is an increase in students achieving accreditation at levels 5 and 6. A partnership has been established
with Japan Musical Youth Theatre, where we have been delivering on-line dance and musical theatre jazz
dance workshops and we provided junior acting students to the University of Glasgow medical faculty in
the role of patients for final exams. Working with the recruitment team taster and information sessions
have been delivered in 39 schools and venues across the central belt. In another inifiative 1o improve the
application pipeline the Head of Production has undertaken intensive engagement with schools to
encourage participation in the technical and production programmes.

RCS is a founding member of the Music Education Partnership Group and takes a leading role in the
Group's activities, this past year hosting a successful teacher workshop on Composition in secondary
schools,

The Principal is a member of the National Partnership for Cuiture which has been charged with supporting
delivery of the vision, ambitions, aims, and actions set out in the Culture Strategy, making
recommendations to the Scottish Government that would support a more strategic and connected
approach across government, the sector, and beyond, to ensure that the transformative potential of culture
can be maximised for everyone.

As part of the transformation plans being formulated for the Transitions programme consideration is being
given to the introduction of a Communrity Arts Practice undergraduate degree.

For the culmination of RCS 175% Anniversary, the RCS Symphony Orchestra combined with musicians

from Traditional Music, Jazz and Vocal Studies depariments joined forces to perform music from Martyn
Bennett's GRIT album. Conducted by RCS staff member, and orchestrator of GRIT, Greg Lawson, the

8
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young musicians performed to sold out audiences in RCS and again with a performance in the RSNO
New Auditorium, as part of Celtic Connections.

The RCS Symphony Orchestra visited City Halls in May 2023, the first time performing there since before
the pandemic. Under the baton of Visiting Professor of Conducting, Martyn Brabbins, they performed
Beethoven's Piano Concerto No.3 and in the second half were joined in partnership by students from
Sibelius Academy in Helsinki to perform Mahler's Symphony No.5.

Objective §5: Becoming an exemplar for our sector and nation In sustainable, ethical and inclusive initiatives
across our portfolio, estate and community.

To deliver this we will:

» Reflect changing industry practices in terms of production methods, materials and in relation to rehearsal
and onstage delivery and behaviours. This will address issues such as environmental sustainability and
embrace developments in digital production.

« Diversify genres and repertoires fo create more inclusive curricular content and production output, review
and select organisations and individuals we will work with to enhance and promote this agenda further,

» Embed into practice the themes of sustainability, ethical and inclusive practice included in the curricular
review,

» Develop and start to deliver a pian to achieve carbon net zero emissions.

As part of the curriculum review a new module entitled ‘creative citizenship' has been deveioped and is designed
to support students to understand the most effective ways of working together in community, safeguarding their
own well-being and that of others, and managing inter-personal dynamics as preparation for successful
professional life. Linked with this, work has been undertaken during the year to strengthen regulatory procedures,
including student complainis, appeals, support to study and disciplinary procedures. Leaming Agreements and
mental health support have been supported better with staff resource, and training offered to staff across a range
of issues from anti-racist practice to informal resolution of complaints.

The School of Music is diversifying repertoire in large ensemble projects: aiming to present at least one work by a
composer from an underrepresented group in every large ensemble concert; and to diversity conductors used.
The School is also looking at ways of ensuring that students engage with and present music by under-represented
composers. in their end-ofyear exams.

In curricular development the School of DDPF are undertaking EDI/Anti-Racism training for staff which will lead
onto consideration of repertoire and casting, looking at ways to approach more ‘canonical’ texts that are more
inclusive and anti-racist and also exploring ways to expose students to a more diverse set of plays even when the
cohorts don't have the people necessary to cast them.

Sustainability initiatives introduced during the year across a range of activities are highlighted in the environmental
sustainability section below.

A digital development manager with both academic and technical skills background has been engaged with a focus
on supporting embedding digital skills across the RCS community and developing digital strategy

An RCS Gender Based Violence (GBV) First Responder Network has been established following training of staff
by colleagues from Glasgow & Clyde Rape Crisis, to provide First Responder support to survivors of GBV. The
Network will provide ongoing support and training to First Responders.

Objective 6: Assuring a financially sustainable institutional ecology and estate to deliver a prosperous and
artistically rich future for the organisation, community and Scotland.

To deliver this we will

«  Grow the film programme;

Develop cognate provision in the area of film e.g. screen-writing, composition for screen, creative
production,

Grow the postgraduate population;

Seek efficiencies in production throughput;

Re-calibrate the programme portfolio leading to opportunity to re-purpose part of the estate;

Introduce a fee reset for incoming students,

. " 0

The undergraduate film programme is being re-designed in partnership with industry professionals.

As part of the curriculum review it has been identified that the production throughput is not sustainable either
financially or in tenms of the excess workload it places on students and staff. The production calendar has therefore

9



Royal Conservatoire of Scotland Annual Report for the Year Ended 31 July 2023

been re-assessed to identify where it can be streamiined. This has resulied on a focus on supporting final year
productions and developing a festival which will enable students at an earlier stage of study 1o experience a proto-
professional environment. Certain postgraduate provision is also under review with an objective of reducing the
volume of production output.

A new student recruitment strategy is under development to map out the size and scope of future student numbers
covering: portfolio, UG/PG balance and mix of tuition fee categories.

The tuition fee resaet was agreed by the Board and has been published for students applying for entry in 2024-25.
Promise: Growth and Ambition

Objective 7: Delivering ambitious philanthropic investment in student and staff success, to supplement
core funding and generate more competitive scholarship capital.

To deliver this we will:

« Seek to make the case, in a crowded marketplace that, as the national conservateire, RCS is worthy of
support to help it maintain its excellence and high international standing as a cultural asset for Scotland;

+ Invest further in our development and fundraising function to build the capacity necessary to grow and
sustain philanthropic giving through cultivation of supporters and growing the donor pool, further
development of links in North America and deepening engagement with and deployment of the influential
alumni community.

During the year the Board decided to disaggregate the development and fundraising commitiee so that there would
be an increased focus on fundraising, which included investment in additional resource aimed at securing major
donations.

Working with a generous new donor the team has developed, managed and stewarded the creation of a Fund
which supports programme activity and projects across both the Schools of Music and DDPF giving opportunities
not covered within departmental budgets to students, projects and gues! artists.

Alumni Relations have been strengthened, widening and fostering links with RCS's UK and international alumni
communities. This activity has involved:

- Developing and delivering alumni events in London and Edinburgh with Autumn events planned for New
York and Glasgow,

- Developing and activating a new Ambassador Strategy. Working with Directors of Schools and Heads of
Programme across RCS to identify alumni to help amplify and enhance the understanding of RCS across
the world, build connections and developing a dynamic student and alumni community. A microsite and
aligned activity has been developed with Ambassadors now in place across programmes and in key
geographical locations.

The RCS International Advisory Board (IAB) continues to raise awareness and funds in North America. Recent
activities include:

Fund raising for Film Students to attend the Toronto International Film Festival

Establishing a 8t Louis St Andrew’s Society Scholarship

Co-hosting an alumni event in NYC in October

Supporting US Artists in Residence to visit RCS and deliver new leaming experiences for our students.

- & & @

The Deveiopment and Marketing teams have also worked on a Donor Impact Report which showcases the impact
phitanthropic donations have made to the lives of students and RCS as a whole.

Objective 8: Delivering growth in identified areas of the portfolio to drive sustainability of the institution,
focal and national creative economy, and prepare employable artists to meet the demands of the creative
seclor.

To deliver this we will:

+ Develop and introduce Low Residency Masters (LRM) programmes;

« Create a specialist support service providing expert guidance in freslancing and business skills for
students and alumni;

= Embed the Innovation Studio;

« Establish a system to capture, articulate and share the extensive engagement activities of RCS staff and
to draw these into stories and case studies that help us to demonstrate and celebrate the achievements
of our staff and the impact the Conservatoire has on civic life;

» Strengthen the Engagement Infrastructure at RCS to enable a thriving environment through the
development of an IP Policy and an Engagement Workload Modelling structure for staff,

10
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s Create a visible shop window for the range of engagement services offered by RCS.

We have scoped four LRM programmes initialiy and have begun the market research to establish potential demand
and we will pursue our established Quality Assurance processes o bring these {o market, with a view to
matriculating students to the courses from September 2025

Qur enterprise support has expanded and developed over the years of the Universities Innovation Fund. In 2022-
23 we took stock in an internal service review and, as a result, established a contractual partnership with the
Creative Entrepreneurs Club to take forwarg the next stage of our development. a Creative Support Service within
the overall ambitions of the Enterprise Campus initiative. We have also completed the groundwork for a Creative
Founders Fund, a joint innovation fund for early-stage projects with potential to scale impact in creative arts, arls
and humanities. A partnership between University of Glasgow, Glasgow School of Art, and the Conservatoire, this
will establish a fund to support innovation and entrepreneurship across the three HEIs. The fund will target activities
that help develop early-stage ideas into scalable propositions; and/or provide seed funding to de-risk projects for
further applications for grant funding. This project will help to establish a pipeline for scalable staff ventures for the
very first time.

Objective 9: Generating significant income and commercial opportunity through the expansion of areas
such as specialist short course provision.

To deliver this we will:

» ldentify growth areas in the short course portiolio inciuding the expansion of the micro-credentials
portfolio, on-line and blended programmes,;
« Expand the scale of the junior drama, dance, production and film provision.

The portfolio continues to expand both strategically and in response to growing market appetite for short courses.
We have developed a significant number of new programmes over the course of the year and invested in staffing
up and marketing resource to support their introduction and boost the number of participants the success of which
as evidenced by a heaithy increase in the number of participants in summer 2023 programmes.

A workload allocation model has been developed to facilitate more effective deployment of staff across a wider
range of academic activily and a review of the Options portfolio has been undertaken to identify content which can
be monetised and delivered as short courses.

Challenges presented by Geo-political situation, the cost of living crisis and Brexit and mitigating actions

The challenges presented by these are considerable and often linked. RCS continues to have trouble recruiting
enough Scots to undergraduate programmes (o replace the loss of funded EU undergraduates post-Brexit, while
also trying to fill extra places provided across the sector in support of Scottish Government policy to extend
opportunity. The effect of this has been mitigated in the short term by RCS participation in the Ukrainian refugee
scheme. Although the impact was delayed due o forward contracts, the spike in utility costs adds significantly to
overheads. The cumrent economic environment of high interest rates and stubbornly high inflation has put upward
prassure on pay awards, RCS’ largest cost, well beyond the levels of grant awards. Although RCS ftracks the sector
pay award percentage, siaff recruitment and refention is becoming more challenging as the gap widens between
public and private sectors and between RCS and larger institutions. Taken together these factors all contribute fo
the deficit position RCS is in. The mitigations to address these issues include a focus on diversification and growth
of other income, and exploring ways in which we can more effectively recruit, retain, reward and deploy staff.

Environmental Sustainability

RCS reports annually under the Climate Change Scotland Act 2008 and has shown a steady downward frend in
Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions discounting the distortion caused by the period during and immediately after the
pandemic lockdown, We recognise that RCS lacks expertise or capacity to develop a CNZ Plan and are in the
process of seeking full time Carbon and Sustainability Manager to help map out our current baseline consumption
across the institution develop the plan for carbon reduction. Our target is to have a plan in place by October 2024.

Additional initiatives introduced during the year include:

» A sustainabilily policy and objectives have been agreed;

» Engagement with a local Community Interest Company called Re-Set which both sustainably removes old
stage sets and also provides a source of materials for future productions;

»  Pilot productions undertaken according to the Theatre Green Bouok guidelines on sustainable production
with the aim of expanding the number over time;

e  Procurement emphasis on sourcing local products and services where possible;

= Atender process is underway for an ambitious Solar PV project on practically available roof space across
both Renfrew St and the Wallace Studios;

« Continuation of the LED replacement programme;
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Updated RCS Travel Policy to encourage a green-thinking approach to business travel,

« Participation in a Scottish Creative Arts Sector initiative looking at the feasibility of centralised sets/props

resource;

Most governing body sub-commitiee meetings remain online with less frequent in person meetings;

A change of investment management service to a company which we think can help us to develop our
investment policies in terms of ESG and to improve transparency and engagement with staff and

« Delivery of Carbon Literacy training project with 72 staff and students completing the programme with
pians to continue to roll this out further across the institution;

« Introduction of termly “Town Hall’ meetings to engage staff and students in sustainability initiative and
encourage feedback and new ideas,;

*  An induction for new students about working and studying sustainably in Glasgow is commaencing this
coming academic year. All new students from 2023-24 will receive a sustainability session which will
include details of the sustainability initiatives/scene in Glasgow as part of induction. They will aiso receive
a copy of What Can Art Do? Making Performance in Times of Crisis, a publication which brought together
a compendium of and reflective insights into the many projects and initiatives which RCS staff, students
and coliaborators were involved in in and around the COP 26 conference which includes a list of resources
for performing artists o support environmentally sustainable practice.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors’ Report) Regulations 2013 requires all non-quoted large
companies to report the greenhouse gas emissions for which they are responsible and on any environmental
matters which are material to the company's operations. This disclosure complies with the requirements of
Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR).

Greenhouse gas emissions by yzar (tonnes CO2e):

: % of 2021722 % of
Emissions source {tCOze) 2022723 Total | {restated) Total
Fuel combustion: Naturaf gas 425 56.1% 479 60.1%
Purchased electricity 333 43.9% 318 39.9%
Total emissions (tCOze) 758 100.0% 797 100.0%
intensity: (tCOze per square metre) 0.0336 0.0363

The 2020/21 emissions factors were used in error to calculate Scopet and Scope 2 emissions reported in 2021-
22.

Energy consumption by year (kWh):

% of % of
Energy consumption by year (kWh) 2022/23 Total 2021/22 Total
Natural Gas 2,326,707 58.1% | 2624438 61.4%
Purchased Electricity 1,611,942 40.9% 1,646,328 386%
Total 3,838,649 100.0% | 4,270,766 100.0%

We are unable to provide figures for the consumption of fuel for the purposes of transport due to system limitations.
We do not have responsibility for any emission sources that are not included in our Financial Statements.

QOur greenhouse gas emissions have been calculated using HH (half-hourly) data and utility bills in line with the
methodology set out in the UK Government's Environmental Reporting Guidelines 2019

During the year several vacant properties in the vicinity of RCS have been viewed for potential estate expansion,
This is one aspect of RCS's engagement with the wide-ranging Glasgow City Council ‘Golden Z' initiative lo
regenerate the main axes of the city centre. However, this is contingent upon conclusion of size and scope aspects
of the strategic plan to specify the scale of the requirements and to provide the basis for a business case and full
option appraisal will be commissioned at an appropriate time. In the meantime, existing space use is being
interrogated to seek more efficient deployment also taking account of planned changes to prograrnme provision in
the short term and the impact of hybrid-working on current designation of use. RCS extended its lease with BASE
taking effect from academic year 2023-24 in response to the increasing pressures in the student accommodation
market.

icome Agreement
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The Conservatoire’s Outcome Agreement (OA) for 2022-23 focused on challenges in recruitment of students,
including from disadvantaged backgrounds, in the aftermath of the giobal pandemic. During the year funding was
received from SFC funding to develop a National Programme for the Performance and Production Arts
{Transitions), aimed at increasing leamers’ readiness for audition across the performing and production arls
disciplines. It is envisaged that this is a timely mitigant, and that SIMD20 recruitment to HE programmes will improve
in ensuing years. in 2021-22, bridging provision was particularly effective in the area of teacher training, supporting
all seven participants info HE music education degrees, five of whom began study at RCS in 2022-23.

The deveiopment of the Conservatoire's Strategic Plan was also covered in the OA 2022-23, in the context of
reflection on the ongoing undergraduate curriculum review. Commitments were made to a thoroughgoing review
of production throughput, o lead to a more manageable, efficient, but still diverse learning experience for students.
The positive impacts of this will be implemented through the newly reviewed DDPF provision. A particular need to
focus on developing provision responsive to growth areas in the cultural economy, notably film and production in
Scotland, is central to the curriculum review project. OA 22-23 also committed to developing new academic
provision, which would diversify to modes of delivery in the portfolio, including conceiving new low-residency
Masters programmes delivered in a blended format, with most of the leaming undertaken online, supported by
intensive residential periods in Glasgow, likely in the summer months each year. These will be one year courses,
full-time, seeking to engage an international market in particular.

Analysis of pcor National Student Survey outcomes for 2021-22 suggested that clearer communications with
students, and better ‘closure of the feedback loop’ - i.e. informing students effectively when actions had been
compieted in response to their feedback —would lead to better outcomes. Each School devised an action plan and
monitored progress throughout 2022-23. The resuits for 2022-23 NSS show a 10% improvement in overall student
satisfaction with their courses. Contrary to the disappointment of NSS resuits in 21-22, the outcome of the
Conservatoire’s participation in the Quality Enhancement and Standards Review process (phase 1), conducted by
Quality Assurance Agency Scotland in December 2022 was very positive, commending the Conservatoire in
particular for its student engagement initiatives. The student partnership agreement was noted as an example of
good praclice

The OA 2022-23 gave examples of student success and industry partnership across programmes, providing a
window fo work-based learning that is a hallmark of every programme at RCS. The reporting on Research
Outcomes focused on the positive REF result, noting a modest uplift in Research Excellence Grant funding as a
result of its performance in the national exercise. Case studies outlining public engagement and creative enterprise
work (funded by Universities Innovation Fund) involving both students and staff were required as part of the
agreement, and these focused on the developing RCS Innovation Studio, Make it Happen fund and the Knowledge
Exchange Concordat implementation plan.

Finally, graduate outcomes data demonstrated the continued success of RCS graduates in gaining highly-skilled,
long-term employment after their studies. The latest data obtainable related to graduating cohoris of 2019-20, the
first year to be adversely impacted by Covid-19, which prevented final year student performances from March 2020
onwards. Climate emergency data reporting also increased in the 2022-23 OA, as the Scottish Government and
SFC move towards expecting carbon neutral plans from institutions by November 2024.

The Board of Governors approves both the Outcorne Agreement and the associated annual self-evaluation report
prior to submission to SFC. RCS’s 2022-23 Outcome Agreement and sell-evaiuation report can be found at:
Annugl Accounts & Quicome Agresmaent - Roval Conservatore of Scotiand (s ac uld

Euture prospects

RCS has made a deficit of £722.000 in 2022-23. There has been an overall reduction in cash and short-term
investments for the year of £1.2M. (See financial commentary on page 15).

The budget deficit for 2023-24 is £1.2M, which includes a bid RCS was inviled to submit to the SFC for additional
Small Specialist Institution grant of £1M for a period of three years initially to assist with transformation to ensure
future financial sustainability. During this time a range of initiatives are planned which will grow and diversify
income including: expansion of pre-HE and short course activity, tuition fee reset, introduction of low residency
maslers programmes, an increase in posigraduate student numbers, growth in philanthropic giving and
development of income streams from intemational partnerships. The objective is to return to an operating surplus
i 2025-26. However, there remain sirong economic headwinds including on-going high inflation and energy
costs also reflected in pay negotiation parameters and the likelihood of 2 material increase in STSS empiloyer
coniributions in 2024 with no certainty of central support with the extra cost. In addificn to these economic
factors, student recruitment in controlled subjects continues fo cause concern with a significant shortfall apparent
in both the BEd and the PGDE programmes for the 2023-24 intake. (See reserves and going concern on page
24},

ic § e

The following provision underwent review successfully:
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» BMus and BEd programmes and the BEd was also re-accredited by the General Teaching Council of
Scotiand;

» Interdisciplinary and Extended Practice (IXP) provision (formerly Options).

+  BA Performance was re-launched after a pause of one year with an intake of 10 students. This programme
only recruits triennially;

+  MA Psychology in the Arts commenced with an intake of 11 students;

» CPP intake has been paused for a second year and it will be reviewed alongside the rest of DDPF
undergraduate provision;

+  We continue to make progress on our QESR (Quality Enhancement and Standards Review) action plan
to address recommendations made by the QESR review panel}. This includes progress on an associated
QAH (Quality Assurance Handbook} action plan with a new section related to Dealing with Student
Complaints and Appeals and a revised Institutional Partnerships section being approved by Quality and
Standards Committee.

Access and employment of disabled persons

RCS'’s building and facilities are predominantly accessible in accordance with the requirements of the Equality Act
2010 and each refurbishment or new development continues to enhance the overall level of accessibility. There is
an Access Policy in place for members of the public with disabilities who attend events at RCS.

Applications from disabled persons for empioyment are always fully considered, and if a disabled candidate meets
the minimum essential criteria for a post they are always invited to attend an interview. Uttimately, however, the
most suitable applicant for a post is selected, whether or not that person is disabled. it is the policy of RCS that the
training, career development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, provide equality of
opportunity to that available to other employees. In the event of existing employees becoming disabled, every effort
is made {o ensure that their employment within RCS continues and appropriate adjustments to the workplace and/or
work patterns are made, along with the provision of relevant training to underiake suitable alternative employment.

Promotion of Equality of Service under the Equality Act 201

The RCS Mainsireaming Equality Report 2023 provides information on key ways in which we promote equality of
delivery of service to different groups and have due regard to the public sector equality duties under the Equality
Act 2010. Our current Eguality Ouicomes 2021-2025, which focus on our priority areas for action, also provide
information on success measures, strategic links, and how the Equality Qutcomes link o the general equality duty
of the Equality Act 2010,

These documents are underpinned by a wide range of work and initiatives that include:
+ Focused and challenging training for staff and students;

Invoivement in sector wide developments in EDI issues (i.e. equality impact assessment processes;

Working with departments and programmes to facilitate increased leaming around race and diversity;

Development of in-house networks for staff and students that will feed back into policy development;

Monitoring, analysing and publishing gender pay gap and occupational segregation information in terms

of gender, disability and race;

+  The establishment of a People and Culture Commiftee that is responsible for overseeing, monitoring and
reviewing EDI strategies, activities, reguiatory reports and agreed performance indicators on recruitment,
development, absences and health, safety and welibeing relating to the employee and student life cycles.
The committee is chaired by a member of the Board of Governors;

« An enhanced role of the Disabilily Adviser who prepares an annual report, which compares the
progression and degree resulls oblained by disabled and non-disabled students, and the admission
outcomes of disabled and non-disabled applicants.

Fair Work Practices

The People and Culture Committee, comprises certain Board members with representatives of the CSMT, staff
and Trades' Unions in attendance, who will drive forward the strategic direction in areas relating to people and
culture — specifically recruitment and induction; learning, training and development; recognition and reward; staff
and student voice; people infrastructure; equality, diversity and inclusion; and health safety and wellbeing. Each

strand will have an action pian identifying key projects over a 7-year period that aim to enhance the work and
study environment in line with the Fair Work Convention.

5 5 » 9

A Staff Forum is being relaunched with a revised remit, which will provide a cross-institution platform for staff voice
at an operational level and will work to improve communication and effectiveness of the institution, whilst also
working to redefine its sense of communily post-covid 19,

In line with the Fair Work Convention, RCS has committed to alignment with the Living Wage Foundation rates of
pay and is working towards Living Wage Empioyer recognition. RCS has held Healthy Working Lives Bronze award
for several years and was close 1o achieving the Silver award when the Scheme was paused and then ceased.
However, wellbeing practices continue to be based around its founding principles and activities.

14



Royal Conservatoire of Scotland Annual Report for the Year Ended 31 July 2023

Health, Safety, Well-being and Child Protection

Following the removal of covid-related restrictions the HSW team continued to provide equipment, guidance, and
assistance for those who work from home or on a hybrid basis. The HSW team has provided training opportunities
for staff relating to positive mental heaith and wellbeing, with a particular focus on managing their wellbeing whilst
supporting students whe are experiencing poor mental health. This will be developed further this year.

The S-year Health, Safety and Wellbeing Strategy implementation has commenced with KPis agreed, noise
assessments restarted and staff trained to assist with noise assessments.

The Health, Safety and Wellbeing Action Groups have been restructured following feedback from staff while the
groups internal audits have been reviewed and refreshed.

A significant effort has been put into increasing staff training compliance with full-time completion rates very good.
Part time staff training completion rates have improved and will be a focus for this year for further improvement,

Refresher training for Designated Child Protection Contacts from the NSPCC has been completed.
Financial Resulits
Financial Summary

2023 2022
£'000 £'000
. Income 27,650 26,248
Expenditure (27 759 | (77,933}
Deficit before other gains and losses {108) {1,685}
Loss on disposal of fixed assets (3 {8)
Realised gain on investments z 80
Deficit before unrealised gains and losses (112} {1,841)
Unrealised loss on investments (603} 443}
Deficit for the yaar {122} {2.084)
Operating deficit (excluding gains and losses, endowment
and restricted income) (566) {1,927}
. Capital expenditure 704 473
Cash and cash equivalents 5,737 6,928
Net curreni assets 4.803 5,272
._Pension Asset/{liability) - -

The deficit for the year before gains and losses is £112,000 (2022: a deficit of £1,641.000).

The changes in market conditions, in particular the sharp increase in interest rates, significantly reduced the
FRS102 pension service charge and net interest to £199,000 (2022: £2,327 000} a positive impact for the year of
£2,128,000. Added tc this, a provision was made last year for clawback of grant due to under enroiment of students
in previous years which was higher than required which has resulted in a positive movement of £681,.000. Box
office activily also picked up, generating additional income of £147,000 and there was £110,000 less cost incurred
in refation to streaming of performance output. Bank interest received benefited from the rise in interest rates by
£73,000. Finally, a new restricted donation of £403,000 was received during the year in support of vocal studies
activities.

Set against this, the impact of the annual pay award, a further in-year award and increases in staff numbers and
associated on-costs added £1,376,000 to expenditure. The previous year included an insurance claim of £100.000
and this year was a fallow year for Theatre and Orchestral tax relief as the reference period fell during lockdown
{2022: £101,000). A full year of costs were incurred in relation to new systems implementation of £103,000 and
utifity costs increased by £156 000,

Unrestricted general reserves before pension asset and capital asset donations at the year-end were £12,352,000
(2022: £12,560,000).

The position relating to RCS's involvement in Strathclyde Pension Fund has improved compared to the previous
year due to the significant increase in the net discount rate (discount rate net of inflation) offset by an increase in
the CP! assumption. The FRS 102 report at the year-end showed a net pension asset which had increased
cormpared with the previous year, but it should be noted that the pension asset has not been recognised and details
are set out in accounting policy note 1h and note 23 {o the financial statements.

Cash on hand including short term investments at 31 July 2023 was £5,737,000 (2022: £6,928,000). Although

£150,000 of funds were added to general investments at the beginning of the year, there has been a net reduction
in cash over the year of £1.2M.
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mmary of Investment Performa

RCS's investments are managed on a discretionary basis by a professional fund manager on behalf of the Board
of Governors and monitored by the Finance and General Purposes Committee. The total return across the
managed portfolios for the year was as follows:

Over/Under
Benchmark Total Return Performance
Y% % %
-2.6 -3.2 -0.6

There are three portfolios which are identical in terms of asset allocation, stock selection and the weightings in
individual holdings. The General Fund provides income for unrestricted use within RCS; the Prize Fund provides
income to fund annual prizes and the Piano Fund provides income in support of instrument leasing charges. During
the year two further portfolios were created from donations received, one as a permanent endowment and one as
an expendable endowment.

The investments have retumed -3.2% for the year to 31 July 2023, compared to the benchmark which returned -
2.6%. The investments produce an estimated annual gross yield of 4.1% which is an important part of the total
return. During the year, a recovery in equity markets, particularly in Europe, was offset by significant weakness in
bond markets. Throughout 2022 and into 2023 central banks around the world increased interest rates to address
stubbornly high inflation rates. This impacted portfclio performance, particularly in the second half of 2022.The
investments are well diversified and positioned against a fluid economic and political backdrop. RCS has divested
from direct investment holdings in oil, gas and mining stocks and has invested a proportion cf the portfolios in
renewables which is llustrative of RCS’s wider engagement with, and commitment to, the sustainability and carbon
reduction agenda. This needs to be taken into account when considering performance against the benchmark.

Risks and Uncertainties
Strategic Risks
The Board of Governors has adopted a Risk Appetite Statement which defines risks that RCS is willing and prepared

to take, risks that RCS needs to reduce and risks that RCS is not willing to accept. In addition the Risk Appetite
Statement:

1. Provides guidance on the categorisation of risks inherent in existing and new activities;

2. Identifies the risk boundaries, where, if the risk were to crystaliise, the impact is adverse and not
acceptable;

3 Supports a comprehensive analysis of the risk across RCS, promoting awareness and understanding of
how the risks inter-relate; and

4, Provides a consistent methodology for examining risks and identifying risks that have to be taken to
achieve the strategic objectives.

RCS has determined the institutional risk appetite within a number of categories as follows:

Category Risk Appefite |
Compliance and adherence 1o statute, regulations and professional standards Zero
Development of learning and teaching and research {incorporating digital innovation
in academic and support functions) High
International development and growth Medium
Student experience Low

._Reputation {new) Low
Financial stability and flexibility Low
Pecple and culture Medium
Major projects Medium#
Physical environment Medium
Yirtual environment — cyber resilience and security Low

# Risk appetite depends on the nature of the project.

The corporate risk register is being reviewed tc ensure that the risks are aligned with the new strategic plan, In this
transitionary period the key risks and mitigants noted below reflect both on-going risks and those identified in relation
to the new plan.

The Board of Governors manages these risks through the senior management team which, together with lay
Governor participation, forms the Risk Management Group. The Board receives regular reports through the Audit
and Risk Committee on the controls and mitigating actions that are in place and planned.

The higher strategic risk areas are regarded as being:
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Failure to establish the optimal size and scope of provision and recruit a sustainable student population
in terms of quality and diversity

The effects of Brexit and the pandemic continue to create challenges around recruitment of funded numbers in both
controlled and uncontrolled subject areas ~ the pipeline is not strong enough and the impact of lack of access to
sustained quality pre-HE performing arts education and an apparent widespread lack of interest in pursuing
teaching as a career has led to applicants under-prepared and by extension a similar impact on SIMD applicant
numbers and quality orin the case of teacher fraining a large drop off in applications. Competition for home students
within the UK conservatoire sector has become more intense, with scholarship awards playing an increasingly
important factor in student decision-making.

RCS mitigates this risk through:

» Assessing its programme portfclio to ensure that it remains attuned to the marketplace across the different
tuition fee categories and is aligned with the evolving employment opportunities within the performing arts
industries;

Development of a new recruitment strategy;

Using growth of pre-HE activities as a showcase for, and 1o build the pipeline 10, UG study

Offering exira bespoke support for Scottish applicants approaching the necessary standards at audition
More focus on post-offer conversion activity;

Curriculum review to enhance programme offerings and stimulate more diversity;

Transitions/widening access to the creative industries prograrnme and other schools outreach work
Developing bilateral arrangements with European institutions to continue to provide exchange
cpportunities which could lead to future recruitment and engaging with the Turing Scheme to build
relationships with a broader range of international institutions;

Extending our international reach for high quality students;

Promotion of RCS international reputation and high ranking;

Focus on growth of scholarship funds.

. & & & & » »

Faiture to maintain financial viability in the short to medium term

RCS is forecasting a deficit in each of the next two years and plans to return to surplus in 2025-26 through the
implementation of a range of growth initiatives.

RCS mitigates these risks through:

. Dialogue with SFC, through which RCS has been invited to submit a bid for additional Small Specialist
Institution grant which will support the institution financially as it implements income diversification
initiatives;

. Engagement with SFC to make the case that clawback of grant should be mitigated in recognition of the
particular challenges RCS faced due io Brexit and the pandemic;

. Retention of Ukrainian students recruited in Scotlish Government scheme in 2022-23;

. Expansion of spaces taken under lease to provide more opporiunity for RCS students to secure
accormmmaodation;

. An increase applied fo controliable tuition fee leve! above sector-average for 2023-24 with a re-set to be
implemented in 2024-25 which will iift fees o 2 level more on a par with the wider UK conservatoire sector;

. Increased investment in and focus on expansion of pre-HE and short course activiies to generate
Increased financial contribution;

. Seeing to develop international partnerships which will leverage RCS’s reputation and expertise and
generate a new income stream;

. Working with the HE sector to lobby for mitigation of the impact of the increase in employer contributions
to the Scottish Teachers' Superannuation Scheme which may occur in April 2024;

. Close monitoring of cash balances and cash flow projections;

. Availability of a general investment portfolio which could provide a cash buffer if required;

. Advocacy with the RCS Endowment Trust 10 continue to provide financial support to RCS Trust to mitigate
loss of other donations for scholarships.

Faiture to adapt to maintain longer term financial sustainability including the management of pension costs

The challenge of longer-term financial sustainability cannot be separated entirely from the issues which face RCS
over the shortmedium term and many of the mitigants overlap and support both risk areas. Other mitigations
include:

. The impact of embedding of tuition fee reset which is introduced for incoming students from 2024-25

. Development and introduction of a suite of low residency master's programmes for 2025-26
. Continuing institution-specific lobbying as the nation’s only conservatoire;
. Investment in the development and fundraising operation to boost philanthropic giving has been increased

and more is planned;
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. Continue to market RCS positively internationally;

. Innovations in curriculum and new programme offerings to remain relevant and attractive in the
marketpiace;

. Continue to scenario plan for a range of possible futures;

. Review of pension provision.

Lack of adaptive capacity to meet challenges and objectives

RCS must attract, retain and develop talented staff across the range of its disciplines and professional services to
support the successful implementation of curricular change, development and introduction of new and innovative
programmes and the diversification of income streams. This is against the backdrop of staff recruitment chalienges
as differential with the private sector and larger HE institutions grow and diminishing employment opportunities in
the performing arts due to the challenging economic environment leading to reduction in the talent pool as work is
sought out with the performing arts.

RCS mitigates these risks through:

. The establishment of People and Culture Committee with an ambitious agenda including the priority areas
of the Supporting Plan as noted in Strategic Objective 1 in this report; and in addition:

. Monitoring the current talent pools of staff in the RCS, identify potential future needs and capabilities, and
develop systematic approaches to meet the changing workplace;

. Regularly review that the RCS has adequate processes and procedures in place to drive transformational
change and enhance employee engagement as required;

. Taking the opportunity of staff turnover to review role and structures:

. Planning and management of operational plans to identify resources necessary to deliver individual
projects.

Major Projects

Systems Upgrade

RCS is in the process of implementing a new integrated Human Resources, payroll and finance system, a major
project which has to be undertaken alongside business-as-usual activities and has a target go-live date of 1 August
2024

The risks are mitigated by,

A governance structure with Project Board and Project Team with defined responsibilities;
appointment of a professional project manager;

A detailed project plan with risk and issues register that is regularly reviewed;

Provision of additional staff resource to support colleagues;

Communications plan as the project has RCS-wide impact.

« * 8 8

Prospective international partnership

RCS is in advanced discussion with a performing arts academy in the UAE about the development of a partnership
which would be more complex and wide-ranging than the relaticnships RCS has with other international institutions.
This is potentially a significant new area of business activity for RCS and the risks need ‘o be identified fully and
managed properly.

The risks are mitigated by:

. Institutional quality assurance procedures fo be followed prior to progressing to an Mol

. Advice and input sought from senior colleagues in other HEIs

. Advice sought from FCO and overseas Quality Agency about scope and parameters for a potential
relationship
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Monitoring of Performance

The Board of Governors has agreed a comprehensive suite of performance indicators to assist it to monitor
performance across the range of RCS's activities. A new suite of performance indicators linked to the new strategic
plan is in development and will form the basis of future reporting.

2022-23 2021-22
andd i
Deficit before other unrealised gains and losses £(112K £{1.641)K
Operating deficit (excludes gains and losses. endowment and restricted income) £(568)K £(1,927)K
Percentage of funding
SFC 50% 48%
Undergraduate and posigraduate tuition fees 2% 32%
Junior Conservatoire and short course juition fees 10% 9%
Box office and letting 1% 0%
Donations and other income 7% 11%
f
Capital Investment as % of insurance value 0% 0%
Building condition
Category A ~ as new 62% 84%
Category B — completely fit for purpose 33% 30%
Category C ~ in need of improvement 5% 6%
péts; »
Scottish 1.244 1.230
EU 249 425
RUK 1,770 2.110
international 1,200 1.025
Total 4453 4,790
Students:® No % No %
Scottish 687 55 628 5D
EU 88 7 142 1
RUK 233 19 235 19
international 236 19 242 20
Total 1.244 100 1,247 104
Applications: offers . acceptances 95 171 1101211
Percentage of appiicants with a declared disability 25% 18%
Percentage of undergraduate and postgraduate students with a declared disability 28% 26%
Scots undergraduate applicants from SIMD 20/40 as percentage of total Scots
applicants 23% 22%
Scots undergraduate entrants from SIMD 20/40 as percentage of total Scots
entranis 26% 18%
Scots undergraduates from SIMD 2040 as percentage of fotal Scots
undergraduates 28% 29%
Student Achievement Rate® 82% 88%
Course Completion Rate + 2years ? B83% B4%
National Student Survey overall satisfaction rating 73% 63%
HESA Graduate Quicomes percentage in work or further study 85% 91%
Number of internally generated student performances® 387 240
Audience number® 40,029 17,472
Number of online streamed performances - 71
Number of tickets scid for online performances - 2924
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The student achievement rate is a measure {expressed as a %) of those students who commence the year and become either
sligible to progress or graduate on completion of the year of study.

*The course completion rate + 2 years is a measure {expressed as a %) of students who commence a programme and complete
that programme within 2 years of the standard course duration.

3 Prior year statistics have been rebased in line with current year methodology of early census point of 1% December each year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Board of Governors of RCS is collectively responsible for overseeing RCS's activities, determining its future

direction, and fostering an environment in which RCS's mission is achieved and the potential of all of its students is

achieved. The Board of Governors ensures that RCS complies with the legislative, regulatory, and best-practice

framework within which Scottish higher education operates. in the opinion of the Board of Governors, since the last

annual report, RCS has complied with;

« The principles and provisions of the 2017 Scottish Code of Good Higher Education Governance [the Code]; and,

»  The relevant Scottish legislation which regulates higher education in Scotland (e.g. Post-18 Education {Scofland)
Act 2013 and the Migher Education (HE) Governance (Scotland) Act 2016).

« The Gender Recognition on Public Boards {Scotiand) Act 2019

As part of the Conservatoire’s post-pandemic return to normality, all governance matters have followed the annual
schedule of business, with normal agendas and papers provided electronically. Since 2020, lessons learned for
maximising attendance at all meetings through hybrid approaches have been continued by RCS over the last year,
although a return to primarily in person Board of Governors meetings has been re-established.

In December 2022, the then Chair of the Board, Nick Kuenssberg retired from office and, Professor Dorothy Miell OBE,
FRSE, {formerly Head of the College of Arts and Social Sciences and Vice Principal at the University of Edinburgh)
took up the position following a full election process as required by the Higher Education (HE) Governance (Scotland)
Act 20186). On accession, the Chair initiated a review of sub-commitiee effectiveness which has resulted in the creation
of a new sub-committee at RCS, People and Culture. This committee will be responsible for the review of people
strategies across RCS, including both a general focus on the employee and student lifecycles and, more specifically,
compliance with health and safety (as formerly undertaken by the Health, Safely, and Wellbeing Committee). in addition
to this new committee, new appointments within the Board have also been made, including the appointment of a new
Vice Chair, Caroline Roxburgh (following the retirement of one Vice Chair, Agnes Robson and the election of the other
Vice Chair to the position of Board Chair, Professor Miell). The role of Senior independent Governor has also been re-
formalised. From June 2023 this role undertakes the convenorship of the Remuneration Commiltee whereas up to that
point a Vice Chair with the responsibilities of senior independent governor underiook it The new convenor of
Remuneration Commitiee going forward is Dr David Hare.

During the last year the RCS has also been able to fulfill the Code’s requirements regarding Trade Union membership
on the Board. Consequently, the Board will be welcoming representation from both EIS and Unison in Autumn 2023,

H
The Board of Governors is the Conservatoire's governing body. its powers have been defined over a number of years
as reflected in ils statutory instruments. The business of RCS is overseen by the Board of Governors who may exercise
all the powers of the company. The statement of Governors’ responsibilities for preparing the financial statements is
set out on pages 27 and 28.

The Board of Govemors is responsible for RCS’s system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. Such
a system is desigred to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve its business objectives and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstaternent or loss.

As head of the governing body, the Chair is responsible for leadership of the Board and ensures its effective funclioning.
The Chair is supported in this work by a Vice Chair and a Senior independent Govemnor. The Chair oversees the smooth
operation of the business of the Board.

The Board of Governors met five times per year up to July 2023 and from Autumn 2023 it will return to the pre-COVID
requirement of 4 meetings per year. Additionally, the Board normally holds an annual meeting to consider strategic
planning issues. It may delegate any of its powers to any committee of one or more Govermnors,

Size and Composition of the Board of Governors
As of September 2023, the Board of Governors comprises a total of 22 Governors. This total is composed of the
following:
+ 13 Lay Govemors (including the senior lay governor — (the Chair) with proven experience in the performing
ans, industrial, commercial or employment matters or the practice of any profession;
s 3 ex officio governors: Principal, Deputy Principal, and an elected member from Academic Board,
+ 2 student members: Student Union President & Student Union Vice President;
« 2 slected/nominated staff Governors (1 elected from the academic staff, 1 from the professional services
staff);
« 2 Union representative governors (1 from EIS; 1 from Unison).

Multiple factors influence both the size and composition of the RCS Board of Governors. The main ones are.

1. Ensuring that the skills and experience profile of its total membership is sufficient to meet the Board of
Govemors' commitments in terms of its Statement of Primary Responsibilities, the Scottish Code of Good
Higher Education Governance 2017, and to operate its various Commitiees.

2. Being able to adapt the Board's skills matrix to accommodate the changing context in which performance
arts education is developing.
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3. Emphasising, through the Board membership, its position as a national institution with an international profile
and ambitions.

4. Aligning its singular focus on performing arts education with 2 Board membership drawing on the expertise
and wisdom of individuals with either direct experience of performance or with ieadership/senior management
experience in the performing ans.

5. Committing to equality and diversity: both equalities legislation and the gender recognition on public boards’
requirements play a role in how the Board considered its composition.

Nominations Committee has reviewed the equalities composition of the Board as part of its process of
preparing to recruit one new lay member in the second haif of 2023. Such a review is undertaken annually
by Nominations Committee,

The work of the sub-committees
The Board of Governors conducts much of its business through its sub-committees. All of these commitiees are
formally constituted with their own tenms of reference. The committees are:

Academic Board which is responsible to the Board of Governors for the overall planning, co-ordination,
development and supervision of the academic work and for Quality Assurance and Quality Enhancement within
RCS. The membership comprises the Principal, the Deputy Principal, the Senior Academic Managers, the Head
of Information Services, a member co-opted from another academic institution, up to three elected student
members, five elected academic staff members and a lay governor in attendance. During the year to July 2023, the
Academic Board met five times and was convened by the Principal, Professor Jeffrey Sharkey and, in his absence,
by the Deputy Principal, Dr Lois Fitch.

Finance & General Purposes Committee which infer afia recommends to the Board of Governors the RCS's
annual revenue and capital budgets and monitors performance in relation to these approved budgets. The
Committee examines all matters which have major financial implications for the RCS and, therefore, it is involved
in the examination of all aspects of the RCS's planning and budgetary processes. The scope of the Committee’s
remit may, from time to time, include the examination of issues which extend beyond financial, but which are
nevertheless of strategic importance. Its membership is composed of 8 governors in total, including the Chair (ex
officio), § iay governors, the Principal (ex officio), and the Student President {ex officio), plus the convenor of Audit
& Risk Committee in aftendance. During the year to July 2023, the committee me! six times and was convened by
Andrew Bufcher.

Audit & Risk Committee which advises and assists on the adeguacy of the risk management and internal control
environment of the Conservatoire. The committee oversees the proper preparation of the annual report and
accounts and the work of the internal and external auditors. It meets at least three times per year and at least once
per year it meels with the Conservatoire’s external and internal auditors for independent discussions. lis
membership is composed of 4 lay members, plus the convenor of Finance and General Purposes is in attendance.
During the year to July 2023, the commitiee met three times and was convened by Caroline Roxburgh. The Risk
Management Group, which meets four times per year, is convened by the Director of Finance and Estates, and
to which up to two lay governors can attend, is responsible to the Audit and Risk Committee for identification of risk
and ensuring that all identified risks are assessed adequately, addressed in policies, and regularly reviewed and
up-dated in a systematic process.

The Nominations Committee which makes recommendations to the Board of Governors on matters relating to its
structure, effective govemnance, and membership. Itis composed of the Chair (ex officio), the Principal (ex officio),
the Student President (ex officio), the Senior Independent Governor (ex officio), two lay govemors, and one elected
staff governor. During the year to July 2023, the committee met twice and was convened by Professor Dorothy
Mieli,

The Remuneration Commitiee which ensures that the salaries and terms and conditions of members of the RCS
senior management, including any severance arrangements, are decided in accordance with agreed policies and
processes and take account of all relevant exdernal requirements, including those of: the Scottish Funding Council;
the Scottish Code of Good Higher Education Governance; and the Committee of Scottish Chairs’ Guidance Note
on the Operation of Remuneration Commitlees in Scottish Higher Education. The Committee ensures that all
salaries and conditions are determined by the use of performance management systems, such as the Professional
Update process, and a transparent reward framework, using appropriate salary benchmarking for the RCS/Public
Sector as appropriate and the RCS pay award. The committee has two lay governors, the Convenor of FAGP (ex
officio}, the Chair (ex officio) and is attended by the Director of HR and the Principal (ex officio) (except during
discussions regarding the Principal’s renumeration) and the Academic Registrar and Secretary. it nomally meets
once per year. During the year to July 2023, however, the committee me! twice, and was convened by Agnes
Robson until October 2022 and subsequently, by Dr David Hare as the Senior Independent Governor,

Health, Safety, and Wellbeing Committee which provides a forum to address health, safety and wellbeing matiers
across the Conservatoire and includes representation from academic staff, professional services, and students as
well as being convened by a lay governor. During the year to July 2023, the committee met three times and was
convened by Carol Main until her retirement in March 2023, when Sharon Mair took over as convenor to maintain
continuity with the fransition of the strategic and compliance oversight work of this committee into the People and
Culture Committee. The reconfigured Health and Safety Committee now sits as an operational committee
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reporting directly to the People and Culture Committee.

The People and Culture Commiftee which is responsible for the review of people strategies across RCS. This
includes both a specific focus on the employee life-cycle and also the strategies and policies relating to the student
life-cycle. The committee will monitor and report on strategic progress and will review related KPlIs and data, which
will inform future development, The committee will make recommendations for infernal reviews as and when
appropriate. The commitiee shall provide a People and Culture report to the Board of Governors which will include
Health Safety and Wellbeing, and Equality, Diversity and Inclusion activities. The committee ensures that the
Conservatoire approaches are directed by and consistent with the RCS Strategic Plan. its current membership is
five lay governors, the Deputy Principal (ex officio), the Student President (ex officio), and one elected staff governor
{ex officio). It has met once during the year to July 2023 and is convened by Sharon Mair.

The Fundraising Committee (formerly the Development and Fundraising Committee) which ensures the approval
and oversight of @ fundraising strategy that aligns with and enables the achievemant of the RCS strategic plan. It
also actively supports and challenges the RCS executive in the development of and securing of additional and
recurring revenue sources and/or streams to support scholarship, project, campaign, and unrestricled income
activity as well as approving and overseeing the strategy for alumni engagement and future giving. Its current
membership comprises of six lay governors, the Chair (ex officio) and the Principal (ex officio). During the year 1o
July 2023, the commitiee met four times and was convened by Philip Rodney.

The Fair Access Committee is responsible for ensuring that the RCS is resourced effectively to meet its strategic
national and institutional fair access and transitions outcomes and targets, as set out in the Scottish Funding
Council's {SFC) Outcome and Impact Framework and has effective policies in place to meet relevant legislative
obligations. The Committee ensures that the Fair Access strategic priorities and projects are designed to realise
reievant objectives in the RCS’ Strategic Plan. Its membership includes 3 lay governors plus the Student President
{ex officio}. During the year to July 2023, the committee met three times and was convened by Professor Dorothy
Migll until her move {o being the Board of Governors’ Chair, when Morag Campbeill took over as convenor.

The Infrastructure Committee (formerly the Buildings Commitiee) oversees the operation and, where appropriate,
development of the RCS Estate Strategy to ensure that it supports the achievement of the RCS strategic plan. The
Committee has delegated responsibility for the control of major capital works in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines and directions issued by the Scotlish Funding Council and Government, always observing the principles
and procedures set down in the Capital Projects Decision Point Process. It receives, considers, and ultimately
recommends the Estate Strategy to the Board of Govemnors. Its current membership is three lay governors, the
Chair (ex officio), the Principal {(ex officio), and Student President (ex officio). During the year to July 2023, the
committee met six times and was convened by Ed Monaghan.

GOVERNOR ATTENDANCE OF THOSE ELIGIBLE TO ATTEND AT COMMITTEE MEETINGS THROUGHOUT THE YEAF
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Andrew Butcher 55 6/6 2i2 374
Morag Campbell 475 2i3 33 212 141 213
Stuarnt Cross 815 46 12
Carol Main 34 33
Sharpn Mair 85 112 33 2/4 171
Ed Monaghan 815 56
Mark O Thomas 182
Macim Pak-Shiraz 515 273 212 14 11
Agnes Robson 171 11 171
Philip Rodney 5/5 4/8 4/
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Elizabeth Jenkinson 55 141
Ruth Calder 445 111
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The following additional groups meet as required 1o ensure the effective operation of the Board of Governors: The
Convenors’ Group is for ail the convenors of RCS’ Board of Governors' related committees and is convened by
the Chair. it meets regularly to discuss issues affecting Board committees, communicates regarding governance
and committee business between commitiee meelings as necessary, and oversees the current annual evaluation
of Board committee effectiveness. It has met once in the year to date and is convened by the Chair of the
Board. The Ad Hoc Corporate Governance Reference Group is established by the Board of Govemors to meet
on an ad hoc basis to receive sensitive information, for example about complaints or issues that could impact the
govemance and/or reputation of the Royal Conservatoire of Scotland (RCS), which might raise general or specific
issues of concern or suggest a significant lapse in good governance. It provides a mechanism for determining
whether and in what way these matters should be considered and eventually brought formally to the attention of
the Board. It has not been required to meet in the last year.

Student and Staff Engagement in Governance and Quality Processes

Students are represented at all levels of RCS's governance and academic quality assurance and enhancement
processes. Central to student engagement in governance and quality is the role of the sabbatical officers of the
Conservatoire’s Students’ Union. The President and Vice President of the Students’ Union are members of both the
Board of Govermnors and the Academic Board. The President of the Students’ Union is also a member of the Finance
and General Purposes, Nominations, People & Culture committees and from the 2023/24 academic session will sit
on all but the Audit and Risk, Fundraising and Remuneration sub-committees of the Conservatoire.

In compliance with the Code, and to ensure student engagement in all matters related {o the academic quality of
their programmes, students are members of all academic-related committees and processes that report to the
Academic Board, other than Boards of Examiners and progress committees. Additionally, membership of the Board
of Governors includes two elected staff Governors {one by academic and the other by professional services staff)
and one staff Governor nominated by the Academic Board, which itself includes two elected staff (one from each
School) and two staff nominated by School Committees.

Uniguely in higher education, both elected staff Governors and the President of the Students’ Union are
sharehoiders in the Company (the Royal Conservatoire being a Company Limited by Guarantee with a
Shareholding). As well as being of significant symbolic and governance importance, rights of shareholders include
the ability to propose resolutions at RCS's Annual General Meeting.

Risi men Management

RCS Senior Management Team, together with one Lay Governor, form the Risk Management Group (RMG). The
RMG has responsibifity for the Strategic Risk Register which is prioritised in terms of the overall net impact each
identified risk has on the achievement of the business objectives of the institution. The Strategic Risk Register is
reviewed regularly by the RMG, the Audit and Risk Committee and the Board of Govemors.

New areas of risk and/or weaknesses identified by the RMG (which reports through the Audit and Risk Committee
to the Board of Governors) are addressed. Where opportunities to further enhance the control environment are
identified, appropriate actions are defined and completion dales scheduled, so that progress can be monitored
closely.

In summary, a suitable process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by RCS has
been in place for the year under review and up to the date of approval of these financial statements.

RCS’s Risk Management process is compliant with the terms of the Scottish Code of Good Higher Education
Governance,

The Internal Auditors of RCS assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the organisational governance, risk
management, internal confrols and value for money. Any recommendations as a result of the intemnal audht are

reviewed and planned into the development of policies, internal controls and future strategic plans.

In the opinion of the Internal Auditors for the financial year, RCS has a framework of controls in place that provides
reasonable assurance regarding the adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation's governance, risk
management, internal controls and value for money.

In October each year the Board of Governors receives an Annual Report, forwarded through the Audit and Risk
Committee, which reports on the process of intemal controls and risk management at RCS.

The Governors have considered the Annual Report and Financial Statements as a whole and consider them to be
fair, balanced and understandable and to provide the information necessary for stakeholders to assess RCS's
performance, business mode! and strategy.

institutional Sustainabiit

The Board of Governors monitors and enhances institutional sustainability through a number of channels. These
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include:

» Strategic planning;

«  The selting and monitoring of budgets and future financial forecasts with the aim of retuming to operating
surpluses year on year,
Regular reports on student recruitment and retention;
Setting targets and receiving regular progress reports on fundraising activity from the Executive;
Expansion of fundraising capacity; and
Appointment of a business development director.

Reserves

RCS carries reserves to allow it to continue to support the advancement of the business through, for example,
investment in new and replacement capital equipment and the cost of development of new programmes and to
provide a buffer if operating losses need to be absorbed. The Board of Governors through the Finance and General
Purposes Committee undertakes an annual review of the adequacy of reserves to support RCS's operational and
strategic requirements. The latest review in October 2023 confirmed that the level of reserves was adequate for
these purposes.

Going Concern

As noted in the Annual Report, RCS has produced an cperating deficit for the year under review after unrealised
losses on investments. The latest information available indicates that the forecast outtum for the year ahead will
also be an operating deficit. However, taking into account current liquidity, cash flow projections, future expected
cash generation and the leve! of acceptances for places on programmes cormmencing in September 2023, it is
considered that there are adequate resources to meet RCS's future financial commitments. There are currently
long-term borrowings of £1,220,000 from RCS Infrastructure Trust which are not repayable on demand and are
more than offset by cash and unrestricted investments as set out in in the statement of cash flows and notes 12
and 14 to the accounts. The Governors believe that RCS can manage its business risks despite the current
uncertain ecoenomic outlook and have a reasonable expectation that RCS will continue 10 receive adeguale support
from the SFC and from RCS Trusts. Accordingly, the Governors consider that RCS will have sufficient resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and they continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the annual financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF PRIMARY RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

To approve the mission, strategic vision and values of the Conservatoire of Scotland, long-term academic and
business plans and key performance indicators, and fo ensure that these meet the interests of stakeholders.

Under the general control and direction of the Board, to delegate authority to the Principal, as chief executive, for
the academic, corporate, financial, estate and personne! management of the Conservatoire and to establish and
keep under reguiar review the policies, procedures and limits within such management funclions as shall be
undertaken by and under the authority of the Principal,

To retain strategic responsibility for quality and provide public accountability for all aspects of institutional activities,
including quality assurance and enhancement.

To delegate to the Academic Board the function of the Board relating to the overall planning. co-ordination,
development and supervision of the academic work of the Conservatoire and such other functions of the Board as
may be assigned to the Academic Board by the Board. Under these arrangements, the Board must satisfy itself
that there are appropriate processes in place with regard to quality assurance and enhancement of educational
provision.

To ensure the establishment and monitoring of systems of control and accountability, including financial and
operational controls and risk assessment, procedures for handling intermal grievances, complaints from
students/staff and others (including whistieblowing) and for managing conflicts of interest.

To ensure that processes are in place t0 monitor and evaluate the performance and effectiveness of the
Conservatoire against the plans and approved key performance indicators, which should be ~ where possible and
appropriate — benchmarked against other comparable institutions.

To establish processes to monitor and evaluate the performance and effectiveness of the Board itself.
To establish processes to monitor and evaluate the performance and effectiveness of the Chair of the Board.

To conduct its business in an open and transparent manner and in accordance with the Scottish Code of Good HE
Governance, bearing in mind the principle of proportionality and relevance to the nature of the Conservatoire, and
with the principles of public life drawn up by the Commitiee on Standards in Public Life.

To ensure that the Conservatoire meets its commitments to the Scottish Funding Council and other funding
providers.

To safeguard the good name and values of the Conservatoire.

To appoint the Principal as chief executive, and to put in place suitable arrangements for monitoring her/his
performance.

To appoint a Secretary to the Board and to ensure that, if the person appainted has managerial responsibilities in
the institution, there is an appropriate separation in the lines of accountability.

To be the employing authority for all staff in the Conservatoire and to be responsible for establishing a human
resources strategy.

To be the principal financial and business authority of the Conservaloire, to ensure that proper books of account
are kept, to approve the annual budget and financial statements, and to have overall responsibifity for the
Conservaloire’s assels, property and estate.

To ensure that public funds are appropriately applied and are properly accounted for and that the Royal
Conservatoire delivers value for money.

To be the Conservatoire's legal authority and, as such, {o ensure that systems are in place for meeting all of the
Conservatoire's legal obligations, including those arising from contracts and other lega!l commitments made in the
Conservatoire’s name.

To make such provision as it thinks fit for the general welfare of students, in consultation with the Academic Board.
To act as custodian for any legacy, endowment, bequest or gift made directly to the Conservatoire.

To act as the Board of Directors of the Conservatoire as a Company Limited by Guarantee with a share issue and
to manage the business of the Company, exercising all the powers of the Company.

To ensure that the Conservaloire's constitution is followed at ali times and that ils business is conducted in
accordance with its various statutory obligations and that appropriate advice is available to enable this to happen.

To both constructively challenge and support the management of the Conservatoire.
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STATEMENT OF GOVERNORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and the Financial Memorandum with the Scottish Funding Council, the
Governors are responsible for the administration and management of the affairs of RCS, including ensuring an
effective system of internal control, and are required to present audited financial statements for each financial year
which disclose a true and fair view of the state of affairs of RCS and of the surplus or deficit and cash flows for that
year.

The Governors are responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are maintained which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of RCS and which enable them to ensure that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with the Companies Acts, the Accounts Direction issued by Scottish Funding
Council, the Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education Institutions effective
from 1 January 2019 and other relevant accounting standards.

in preparing the financial statements, the Governors have ensured that.-

Suitable accounting policies are selected and applied consistently;
Judgments and estimates are made that are reasonable and prudent;
Applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements; and

» Financial statements are prepared on a going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that RCS will
continue in operation. The Governors are satisfied that RCS has adequate resources to continue in operation for
the foreseeable future: for this reason the going concem basis continues to be adopted in the preparation of the
financial statements.

The Governors have taken reasonable steps to:-

+ Ensure that funds from the Scottish Funding Council are used only for the purposes for which they have been
given and in accordance with the Financial Memorandum with the Council and any other conditions which they
may from time to time prescribe;

« Ensure that there are appropriate financial and management controls in place to safeguard public funds and funds
from other sources;

« Safeguard the assels of RCS and hence {0 take reasonable steps to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities;

Secure the economical, efficient and effective management of RCS's resources and expenditure; and
Ensure sound corporate governance and the proper conduct of RCS's operations.

The key elemenis of RCS's system of internal financial control, which is designed to discharge the responsibilities,
set out-

+ Cilear definitions of the responsibilities of, and the authority delegated to, heads of academic and administrative
departments;

« A comprehensive short and medium-term planning process, supplemented by detailed annual income,
expenditure and capital budgets:

« Regular reviews of key performance indicators and business risks and financial results involving variance
reporting and updates of forecast outturns;

s Clearly defined and formalised raquirements for approval and control of expenditure, with investment decisions
involving capital or revenue expenditure being subject to formal delailed appraisal and review according to
approval levels set by the Board of Governors;

» Comprehensive financial regulations, detailing financial controls and procedures, approved by the Audit and Risk
Committee and Finance & General Purposes Committee; and

s The appointment of 3 firm of Chartered Accountants offering internal audit services, whose annual programme s
approved by the Audit and Risk Commitiee, provides them with a report on the internal audit activity within RCS
and an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of RCS's system of internal controls, including internal financial
control.

Any system of internal financial control can, however, only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or joss.

Staterment as to disclosure of information to auditors

The Governors have taken all the necessary steps to make themselves aware, as Governors, of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information. As far as the Governors are aware, there
is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditors are unaware. The Governors confirm that, whilst the
auditors have been engaged in non-audit work during the year, sufficient safeguards have been implemented from
the audit firm to ensure that the independence of the audit was not compromised.

Governors’ Statemnent on Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Governors have considered the Annual Report and Financial Statements as a whole and consider them fo be
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fair, balanced and understandable and to provide the information necessary for stakeholders to assess RCS's
performance, business model and strategy.

GOVERNORS' REPORT
MEMBERSHIP

Goverhors
The Governors set out in the table below have held office during the whole of the period from 1 August 2022 to the
date of this repor{ uniess otherwise noted.

Lay Governors

Professor Dorothy Miell OBE (Chair from 08/12/22; previously Vice Chair to 07/12/22)
Nick Kuenssberg OBE (Chair — retired 07/12/22)

Caroline Roxburgh (Vice Chair from 27/01/23)

David Hare (Senior independent Govemor)

Jo Buckley

Andrew Buicher

Morag Campoell

Professor Stuart Cross

Carol Main MBE (retired 25/04/23)

Sharon Mair

Ed Monaghan

Professor Mark O'Thomas (resigned 14/10/22)

Professor Nacim Pak-Shiraz

Agnes Robson (retired 25/10/22) (Vice Chair and Senior Independent Governar)
Philip Rodney

Professor Matthew Rooke

John Taylor

Governors ex officiis

The Principal:
Professor Jeffrey Sharkey

The Deputy Principal:
Dr Lois Fitch

The President, Students' Union:
Ken Fairbrother

Nominated by Academic Board
Jean Sangster

Student nominated

The Vice President, Students’ Union

Ulysse Tonnele Verjus (from 01/08/23)

Ulysse Tonnele Verjus ~ Music (up to 31/07/23)
Scotty Scott - DDPF (up to 31/07/23)

Staff Governors-elected

Elizabeth Jenkinson (Academic staff) (elected 29/10/21)
Ruth Caider (Professional stafl) (elected 28/10/22)

Ruth McGowan (Professional staff) (resigned 30/09/22)

Trades’ Unions nominated

William English {from 01/08/23)
Alexander Lee (from 01/08/23)

28



Royal Conservatoire of Scotland Annual Report for the Year Ended 31 July 2023

Honorary doctorates of the Royal Censervatoire of Scotland

The following honorary doclorates were awarded during the academic session 2022-23:

Doctor of Dance
Christopher Hampson CBE

Doctor of Drama
Kate Dickie

Doctor of Music
Garth Knox

Governors' interests
Register of Governors' interests can be viewed on the website at hitp /fwww res ac uklaboul us/governorsiregister/

Governors’ interests

Ruth Calder 60 ordinary shares of £1
Elizabeth Jenkinson 60 ordinary shares of £1
Professor Dorothy Miell 60 ordinary shares of £1
Professor Jeffrey Sharkey 60 ordinary shares of £1
Ken Fairbrother 60 ordinary shares of £1

Governors' interests are shown as at the date of this report.

The Memorandum and Articles of Association prohibit payment of any dividend on the shares, prohibil any
distribution to the sharehoiders in the event of a liquidation and require the Chair to vote in accordance with the
wishes of the Governors on certain matters. RCS maintains a register of Governors' interests and a register of gifts
to governors and staff.

Directors’ and Officers’ lability insurance

RCS has arrangements for directors’ and officers’ liability insurance cover,

Fixed assets

The fixed asset movements for the year are detailed in Nofe 11 1o the financial staterments.

Payment of creditors
it s RCS's policy to obtain the best terms for all goods and services. There is thus no single policy as to the terms
used. In agreements negotiated with suppliers, RCS endeavors fo include and abide by specific payment terms.

The creditors’ balance at 31 July 2023 represented 7% of total purchases for the year, equivalent to 24 creditor
days. No interest was paid in terms of the Late Payments of Commaercial Debts (Interest} Act 1998,

Auditors

in accordance with Section 485 of the Companies Act 2006 a resolution for the re-appointment of Chiene + Tait
LLP {trading as CT) as auditors of RCS is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

APPROVED BY THE GOVERNORS ON 27 OCTOBER 2023 AND SIGNED ON THEIR BEHALF BY

Do o

Professor Dorothy Miell Professor Jeffrey Sharkey
Chair Principal
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independent Auditor’'s Report to the Board of Governors of the Royal Conservatoire of Scotland

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Royal Conservatoire of Scofland (the ‘RCS") for the year ended
31 July 2023 which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive income, the Statement of Changes in Reserves,
the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard
102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

» give a true and fair view of the state of RCS's affairs as at 31 July 2023, and of its incoming resources and
application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and

s« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008, the Charities and
Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and regulation 14 of the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations
2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the RCS in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilied our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial staternents, we have concluded that the govemors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the RCS's ability to continue as a going
concern for a period of at least twelve months from then the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the governors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The governors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report and the chair's foreword, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report therson.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the exten! otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion theraon.

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is 1o read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 1o be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstaternent in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing o report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

» the information given in the annual report (incorporating the strategic report and the directors’ report) for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

+ the strategic report and the directors’ reporl have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.
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Opinion on other matters prescribed by the terms of our engagement
In our opinion, in all material respects:

* Funds from whatever source administered by the RCS for specific purposes have been properly applied to
those purposes and, if relevant, managed in accordance with relevant legislation, and any other terms and
conditions attached to them: and

» Funds provided by the Scoffish Funding Council have been applied in accordance with the Financial
Memorandum and the requirements attached to the Financial Memorandum.

*  The requirements of the Scottish Funding Council’'s accounts direction have been met.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the RCS and its environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we have not identified material misstaternents in the annual report (incorporating the strategic report and the
directors’ report).

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 and the
Charities Accounts (Scotiand) Regulations 20086 require us to report {0 you if, in our opinion:

+  adequate and proper accounting records have not been kepl. or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

» the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

»  certain disclosures of governors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of the Board of Governors

As explained more fully in the governors responsibilities statement, the governors {(who are also the trustees and
directors of the RCS for the purposes of charity and company law) are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
govemors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the governors are responsible for assessing the RCS’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the RCS or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

We have been appoinied as auditor under saction 44(1){c) of the Charities and Trustee Investment {Scotland} Act
2005 and under the Companies Act 2006 and report in accordance with regulations made under those Acts.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with i1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected o influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed
below.

We gained an understanding of the legai and reguiatory framework applicable to the RCS and the sector in which
it operates and considered the risk of acts by the RCS which were contrary {o applicable laws and regulations,
including fraud. These included but were not limited to the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scolland) Act 2005,
and Health and Safety Regulations.

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of material misstatement in the financial statements,
recognising that the risk of not detecting a material misstaterment due to fraud is higher than the risk of not delecting
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery, misrepresentations
or through collusion.

We focused on laws and regulations that could give rise to a material misstatement in the RCS's financial
statemeants. Our tests included, but were not limited to:
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements {continued)

Agreement of the financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation,;

Obtaining an understanding of the control environment in monitoring compliance with laws and regulations;
Enquires of senior management and the governors; and

Review of minutes from the Finance & General Purposes Committee meetings and Audit and Risk Committee
meetings throughout the period.

. & » =

There are inherent limitations in an audit of financial statements and the further removed non-compliance with laws
and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would
become aware of it. We also addressed the risk of management override of intemal controls, including testing
journals and evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the directors that represented a risk of material
misstatement due o fraud.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's
report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the RCS’s governors, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2008 and in accordance with Regulation 14 of the Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006,
Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the RCS's governors those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the RCS, the RCS's governors as a body, for our audit work,
for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Jeremy Chittieburgh CA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Chiene + Tait LLP (trading as CT)

Chariered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
61 Dublin Street

Edinburgh

EH3 6NL

4] 1] ] 20
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Royai Conservatoire of Scolland

Statement of Comprehensive income for the year ended 31 July 2023

NCORE

Furdirg body grants

Tuition fess and education contradts
Hesearch grants ang corbacls
Othar noome

irvestmert incoms

Denations and erdowments

Total Income

EXPENDITURE

Bialf costs

Drbar opsrating expenses

Depracigtion

Total Expenditure

Deficit betore other gains and losses

Loss on disposal of flxed assets

Rasmisad gair on Pasimen

Deficit before unrealised gains and losses
Unreolised (085 on wwestmenis

Oeficit for the year

Actuarial gain in respect of pension schemes
Totat comprehensive incorme for the year
Repregerded by

Endowrmant comprahensive income for the year
Festricted comprehensive ncoms for the yesr

Unrestricled compretensive income for 1ne year

Af navns of Foome and expeniire relsle o conlirndng sctivities

Annual Report for the Year Ended 31 July 2023

2023 022

Mote £000 PRci
2 13823 13,244
3 11867 10,882
4 156 134
5 705 508
& 424 280
7 788 70
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8 20,809 20,920
10 6212 6,108
11 938 S04
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Royal Conservatoire of Scotiand

Statement of Changes in Reserves for the year ended 31 July 2023

Balance at 1 August 2021
Dafict from the
comprghansive incoma and
expercitae staement

Cther comprehensive ncome

Transters bebwaen revaluation and
incoms and expardiurg resornve

Release of restricted furds spent »
e year

Transters vetvween Prize Furd

and Urrastrictes Reserve

Total comprehansive income for the year
Balance at 1 August 2022

Defict from the

comprehensive income and

axpenditire statement

Otrer comprehensive ncome

Translers hebwsen ravabmtion snd
incoms and sxperditisg reserve

Release of restricted furdds spent in
the vear
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 July 2023

Annual Report for the Year Ended 31 July 2023

Restricted Restricted Urrastricted Unrestricted Urwestricied
{Erdowment) {Other} {General) {Fension) {Rovahation) Teral
000 £000 £ £000 200 200
2021 274 22851 (7,748} 2,088 20,494
245 116 {118) {2327} . {2,084)
. . . 10,075 . 10,075

. . ATy (377)
) (4813 169 - .

{5} 5 -
202 {45} 463 7748 {377} 788
2,223 226 24314 o EA M 28,482
44 485 {1,029 {199} 715
- - 198 - 199
. . 474 - Aars -
{38y {88} 183 . .
{44} 374 {368) (478 (B8
2179 800 23,948 1,233 27,9658




Royal Conservatoire of Scotland

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 July 2023
{Company Registration No.SCO4703}

Mon-current assets
Tangible fied asets

rvesimsris

Cusrent asasts
Trade ard other receivabies
Wreasiments

Cash grd cash oquivalents

Less: Creditors - amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts faliing due after more than one year
Provisions

Pansion srovisions

Ciber provsions

Total net assets

Rastricted reserves

Erdowmarnt resarve

Crbwr resticiad reserve

Unrestricted reserves
Gerral reserve
Pension reserve

Hovauabon rasarve

Brare capital
Total reserves

Annual Report for the Year Ended 31 July 2023

Note

23 feivv]
£'000 20
Ex it 33814
8057 8238
41,404 41,850
1,816 1,264
1,403 1392
4,335 & 53¢
TES LREA
{2.550; {2,920
4,803 5472
#6207 47122
(18.007) {18 228!
{234 gt
RS 8 an
1178 2,423
0 22
PR 2448
23,946 24314
1233 1741
7,858 2BATE
g 8
g TE 8T

The financial statemenis on pages 33 to 51 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Governors on 27 Cctober 2023 and were signed on its behalf on that date

by:

2V

/ A

Aan Smith
Director of Finance and Estates
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Royal Conservatoire of Scottand

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 July 2023

Annual Report for the Yoear Erwded 31 July 2023

2023 2027
Note £000 £000
Cash fiow from operating activities
Defich for the year (F15) {2,084}
Adjustment for son-cash items
Degreciation 14 438 804
Logs on ¥westments 603 53
{ireregse) indeblors 13 {352} {398}
{Decreaseliroresss in craditors 15118117 ©a1) 298
(D in othar pr 18 (78) 79
Pension co%ts lass contriadions payalin < 89 237
Adjustment for investing or financing activities
Investment income 5 (424} {280y
Lows on the saie of fixed Bssts 3 3
Endowmen scome {30) {208}
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1547) 881
Cash flows from investing activities
Provesds from seies of fixed assolsfinvestmants . 698
Shiort term investments 14 (10 )
Investmers income & $24 280
Endowrmers furds bvasted 12 {248) {147y
Furids irvested 12 {148) {1,285}
Paymens (o acquire fxey assels 4 (734) 1473
e84} (G27)
Erdowment cash received 30 206
Decreass in cash and cash equivalents in the year 11,407) B
Cash ardd cash equivaents at beginnirg of the year 5836 5,378
Casn and cash squivaients st end of the year 4,335 54736
Anatysis of changes in net debt
ALY August Cither o casn At 31 Ay
vl Cash fiows changes 2023
£000 EQ00 £000 £330
Cash and cash squivalents
Cash 555 {1,201 . 4,33
Oharcgrats - . - .
Cash erpivalarts - - -
553 {1.201} - 4,335
Borrowings
Dt due within one year 88} - . 166}
Dt due slter one year {1220 86 - {1,154)
(1,266} ] - {1,200
Total [ Vi) ARES) - 318

3%




Royat Conservatoire of Scotland Annual Report for the Year Ended 31 July 2023
Notes to the Financial Statemuents

STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Frw foliowsyy accounting poicies nave been applisd consistantly i dealing will: iterms wihveh are consitdered matenial inrefation 1o te firanciet statesnents

Bams of preparation

Trese foantal statements have pesn prepared i aceordsncs wih the Statement of Recommended Practice [SORPY Accourting for Further ano Higher Egucation 2015 anc in accordarce
with Francst Reporting Stardards (FRS 1020 The RUS ¢ 8 publc berst] enity and theretore tas appisd the ralevant pulic benel reguirgrnent of FRE 102 The tinarcial siatenents are
orepared © acoordance wilh the histonical cost corvertion, modfies to noads the rwestments 3t fay vae and the revaluation of centain musical nslruments The presentatioral and
functiorat curency of the RES & sterling (£3

1 (3nirg Corcemr

Thase fnancial statsnents have been prepared on & going concern basis. The Covernors have assessed e RCS's abifty to continue 83 a goirg concsm. as outined mors fully o the
Rapor of the Qovernors 8 have ressonable axpaciation tha the RCS fas adequsly resauwroes 1o Conlingg i opesstions! exstene for the foreseeabie fulure. Thus ey condinus 10 sdopl
e goirg concerr DEsis M ascounting I prepanry 1hese fnancis statements

Fangble Fxod Assels
1 Lang and Buldings
The ROS's bulltings sre specisised buldings and therefore t & ot appropriate to valee them on e Dass of cosn marke! velus. Larnd ang bultings are sisted n the Statement of Financial

Posion ot cost The man RCS nertage buildings are depracisiod oviy their expecied Juselul economic e to the nstitwier of 100 vears. The Walace Studics whic? s buit o eesebold lard
s deprecisted over 15 remaining usehs e of 80 vears  Material nuiding irprovements coreplatedd i 2017 are depreciated over they expecied usehs eronomic e of 25 yesrs

yyhere land ane DURDNGS afe acqured wil the Sid of spechic granes o donations they are capialsed and deprecated a5 above Wheve the reisted grants come tom govemnmert bodgiss,
there are crecihad 1w opferred income and are releases lo the Slatemen of Comprehensive Income over the expecied wseldl econemic ife of the refaed assel on & basis consintent with tha
deprecistion policy. Where e related grards or dorstions come Fom olher scurces, these are recogrised in the Stalemart of Comprenensive incorme in the perod it which Yy ars
recenabie

Mo depreustion s charged on BT of asseds in the Course of corstruction

3 Ecuspmrenm

Eoapmient custing less than £10,000 for a growp of relsted Rens is witen off 1o e Siaternent of comprehnsive income n e year of acqusition. Al olher squiprrent & ronmally capilaised
st cost. Capdalsed squapment B deprecaisd over s usolul poonomic e as folows:

Fureiturs, Fittings. Ficiuras ami Equpment 0% pae anraam

3 Musics’ instruments

WMusical wslruments costing less then £2 000 ste woitten off © e compretsnsive ncome and expenditue account in the yes of scquisition Ad other musicat insturments, with the exception

of cartain sirnged instruments gnd plenos, are rommaly capitaised 8t sost

Sringsd swmtruments witn & value of £2,000 snd sbove wers revalued as 3t July 2019 as assessed by Mr Daevid Ratiray, an externa! professonal valuation expert  These stringsd st
were originally troughy ome the Siatemert of Finernclsl Position at valustion, thera (s rwrefore ro nistorioal cost associsted with these 3ssets. A revaiustion wil be camied o again n 2024

T Jorn Webb Brags nstrunent coilection was revaiuss by Dr Graham Wells 51 2020 20 sudesnat professional valuation expert Thess trass nstnerents were onginally brought onto the
Staterment of Frigncial Poston st valuption, thare s 1eretors no Mistoral cost asscomted wih hose assels A rovalustion wel be camed oul agen e 2025

A rgvine for mparrent of a fed assel @ carred oul f eveniz or changes in cicumstances fvlicate et the carying smount of e fiked assel may not be recoveratly

Cacitafised musical Instruments are depreciaied cver Hielr usell ecoromis Fa a8 follows

Stringed istruments 1% per annum
by musicy! shruments 10% per aonuan

i i rot possibe 1o dsclose the helorice cost snd degreciaton ‘or the sivinged o brass insiruments 85 738 reigtes to dorated fems, wiish do rot have & cost sltached 1 nem
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Notes to the Fi i Stat { & d}

STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED;

Ivestmens

Listed investments held as fixed assets are Neld at fay value with movements recogmised in the Surphus or Defict for the vear.

Cash and cash equvaients

Cash noiudes cash al nand, Jeposits repaysble o demand and cvarcrats Deposits acg repayable on demand if they &t in practos available within 24 Nours withoat pensiy

Cash equivalents aro short torm. highy liquid investments that are reaciy convertinie le known amourts of cash with insignificant risk of change in vaiue

Frovisions

Provisons are recogrised when t instution has 3 present Jegal or corstructive obligation as 2 result of & past evend, 1 s probable tht 8 ranster of ecoromic benelt wit be regured o
sette the obigation and a ralisbe estimate can be made of the amourd of Ihe obligation

Racognition of ncome

Government revenue grants inciuding funding cowncll biock want and research grarts are recognised in income over e penods in which the RCS recognises the related costs for which the
grant & niended to compensale Government capilai grarts are recogrised in income over the expecled useful Wle of the asset Where part of 8 government grant is dederred it is
recognises a3 deferred incovne within creciions ard allocated between craditors dus within one yesr ard dup alter more than one yaar a5 appropniate

Reverue end capitsl arants lincluding resesrch (ranis} Fom non gevernment sources e recogrised iy income when the RCS s erdtlad io the ncome and perormance related conditions
have bean med loome recevad in advance of performance ralaled conditons Deing mist is resognsed as deferred income wilhin crediors on the Siaterent of Financisl Postion and
refeased o ircome as the conditions are met  Deferred ncome will be alocated bebaaen creditors due within are yesr a0 due sfter mose than ora year as appropiste

Tuiton fee and sgucation contract incoms s recegrised n the year to which I relates. inoome fror inviestments inchading tax cregils, is recognsee on a receivablo Dasis

Non ewcrange dransactions without performance ralater corditons are dooations ana endowments. Donatons and endowments with donor imposed restrictions are recogrised in nooma
whers the RCE s erdtied 1o the funds Income is retaices wilhe the restristed resorve undll such time that iz Uibaed o ine with such restriclions &t wiveh port the income is released 1o
peneral seserves through a reserve arsler

Donators with no restncions are recogrised in income whan the RCS 's amiled to the funds
Iwestment @vd aporeciation of ersiowiments i recorded in income T the year in which it arises and ay either reslricled or urrestricted irsome according Lo the ims of the restriction apphed
10 the indivicu@l enttrwment tung

There are thrae man types of donstons and endowments entified within reserves!

1 Restristed corstiors - 2 donor has specifed that tae donation must be ysed for 3 particulsr ohiective

2 Restristed expendabie endowments - the oonor nas specifed a pertoule objective and the RCS has the power 1o use the cagital

2 Restricled peraned sradowrerts - the donor nes specified that e fund 5 1o be permanently nvested (0 gerarate an noome stream o be
appbed 10 8 parhcular objechive

Maintenance of Premises

Tha RCS ras a roling ‘ong-term mainterance plan, woich forms e basis of the on-going aintenance of the estate. The 5est of leag-term ard routing covestive MAIMerance is cHarges 1o
the comprebersive oo end wapenditure BCCOWY B9 incurred

STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Pension Costs

&

T RUS paticipales 01 Free pormion schames twe of whoh provide bensfds based on fingl pensicoable pay, the Stretrolyde Paasion Fund and Boottish Teachers Pengion Seheme Both of
Urese schernes i avallable to slaf! & move an one emplopss, are corbracted ar of the Stale Fambys-Relsied Persion Scheme, and the assets of the schemes are neld sepasately from
trose of the RCE The Funds sre valued by schanes, the rates of conniagiors beng determmed by the rustees on the advice ¢ the actusres. The schemes are sooounted for unger
Fingncia! Hepoting Slandace 102 The thre pension scheme is a defned contnbution schems: The Universities and Colleges Retiremiort Savings Schame (UCRSS) Ths screme is
avatable to af sl

Siratholyde Fengion Fung

The scharme 5 3 defned denelt scherme

Pensr sifeens asees wie measted uslog marked wabeey For quoled securties thwe Gurrent bid tice 5 tehen as of the francs yesr end Pension schmme Habiities e measued using &
progcied unit methed ard discounted at e current rate of retum on a high quality corporate bond of aguivalerd term and currency 1o Ine ability

A pension scheree suwrehis & nol recogmsed as 4 © ceemed nol recovesss, Nowever a deficil is recognisen in full The moverrent n the scheme sualusddefict is taken lo the
comprabensive ST e and expenciure actount The aciuadial gains and losses are shown n 1he stement of compretensive NCoIMe a6g expenditure

Scottish Teachers’ Pepson Schems

The RCS siso perticioates o e Scoltish Teachers’ Pension Schame Tre scheme s availabie W stafl of more than ore employsr ad § 15 ot possitie to xlentity esch psrtcipating
instiution's srwe of the underying assets ard habities o0 8 corsistont and reasonable basis. Accerdingiy. the RCS has 1ilised the provisions of FRS 102 whareby the contibtions 1o the
scheme are acooured for as T it were # defined cortrbution scheme. The cost recognised within the RCS's staternent of comprebaensive reome and expendiue is e to the coniribution
paysbie 1o he schame for the rok BncoUntig period

The RUS stvo provides sohiroed pensions o forner empioyers who accepted wany relirsmernd and provision is msde on a0 acthuanal basis for the labity 10 those former employees 8t ihe
ang of ther retral
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Notes to the Fi ! 5 {continued)

Taxation Status

The RCE & & chanty within the meaning of tre Chartes and Trustee invesiment (Scotland) Act 2005 and as such s a charty wihin the mearing of Para ' of Schedu'e 8 1o the Finanos Act
2010 and 15 recarded on e wudes of chardes maldained by the Offics of the Suottsh Charity Reguletor (Charty No SCO16855) Accordingly the RCS i potently sxempt fom lax ES
respact of noome OF capdi gans recerved withy Catsgones coversd by sechon 478488 of the Corporauon Tax Act 2010 [CTA Z040) (former’y eracied i Sactor 505 of de income and
Corporation Taxes Act 1988 (1CTAY or Section 255 of the Taxatior of Crageable Gains Act 1982 (o the extent that such income o gains are appied 1o sxclusively chartable purposes

Cperatng Leasey

Opsratng pases tenlals are charges In the Stement of Comorehensae Inoome on & srgight ire pasis over the ‘sase em

COrCossInary Loans

Concessionary 0ans e recogrised 3l the morslary vBus receives ars rderes! free ary ore vaae wholly to advance the charitable paposes of the RCS

Ressrves

Rosarves arp cigssfies as resrinied or urresingled Rastricled endowren eserves fciuds baances whicr, hrough endowment 10 e RS, are hakd a8 a permaremy resincied furg
wineh the FCS must hoid n peroehidy

Oner rostrcted reserves include balances whers the donor nas included & spacific purpose and therefore the RCS is restrisled in use of thavse furds

STATEMENT OF PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTIMNG POLICIES (CONTINUED)

BEETS

Frigncha sssets are naccial debiities are recoyrised when RUS becomes & party to the cortrecius provisions of the instrument

Frmnoa datdles ang squiy mehuments ars Tlasstiag acoording 1o the substance of e contractual arrangements emared Mo An equily insyument is ary conract that svidences 2
resihual nterest n the assets of RCS after deducting af of s dabitiss.

(¢} Financial assets and labilties

Al firarcat assols end kabiites are ntially measured &t transaction price {inciuding rarsaction coss}, except fof trose finarcial assels classfind 36 al far value trough profit or oss, which
are ‘niighy measured Bt fer vahae fwhich s rommally the acsection orive excwing tansaction cosis), unless the arrangement constdules o Yrancing transaction f ar arrangsment

corstitiaes a Trancing trecsacton, e fnsrclsl asse! o finencel fablity is measwed 8 Te present valug of Ine fidure payroents discounted ot @ market rate of irterest o7 B sinvig dett
nsnamey

Finarwinl assets ana arg only offser i Ire siaterment of Tinancial posticn wher. and only when there exists a legslly erforceable right to set off the recogresed amounts and ROS
s wdber o settle oo @ nel baves, of to realise the sssat and sottle the labidy samullancously.

ek brstrumenis whch meet re folowing conditions of peing basic’ firarcial instrurrents s defired in paragrach 11 9 of FREB102 are subsoquantly messured at gaortized cost using e
efective inmeest mothod

Dty nstrumerss thet heve no stated nterest rate (and do not constitde faanong transachont and are clasafied as payabie or receable within 0w yesr are nilaly messized 3t an
undiscouted amount of the vash o othe corsideration sapested to be paid or recaivedd, net of mpairment

Ascouting Bshrmates and Judgsmends

The RCE prevarss 28 francisl steternents ¥7 scoordance wit FRS 102 as wsued by the UK Financiat Reporting Courcil, the appteation of whith often reguires wdgemends 10 oo made when
formadating e firgncial postion and resuts Under FRS 102, e Governors are requirad (o adopt those accounting policies most sporoprigie o the civumstarces for the purmose of
preserting fairly the RCS's firancial posttion. fingroial performance andd cash flows In determiming ang applying ascounting polsies, judpament 's often mouired i espect of fems where e
choice of speciiic pelicy, sccouwntirg estimate of assumption to be followed could materially affec! the reported resdls of rel asee o of the RCS. & may latw be determined hat o
different choice would have been more aopropraie. Maragement consiers hat cerlar acoourting estnates and assurolons relating 10 the pension costs and Fixec Assets are s oios
srcounting estimatas

A dizcussion of thess orifica!l aooounting o3iir oios 1§ provices belos

Manzgeren] has discussed 15 oitical accowrding estimales and sssociated dschisures with €5 exens! auciiors, #s Frarce and Denergl Purposes Commiles and 25 Audit and Hisk
Commiltee

Elged Anasin

Land ang Buldings & the Walsce Studios arg presenty depraciaied over the durator of the remaindsr of the leasebolg which 's ¢
are presendy degrenialed over ther usahs We of 25 wears

P years Naterat buiding snprovernents al Renfrow Strest

Pensico costs

i rEahon o e Cost assocsted with membership of the Strathalyds Person Fund the RUS maxes estmates n relaion 1o the assumpbors which the schams aciusty appdies to the annuat
vakastior of the assets. fabilities ang charges and wiich can have a material baaring o0 Tw figures.
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Notes to the Fi 1t Gt {continued)

FUNDING BODY GRANTS

SFC

Recurrent grant for leaching

Rasgarch excelence grant

Ressarch postgraduste grant

Specific infiative grants:

Osabled student premium

Uriversity innovaton furg

Deferec capilsd grants imslsassd in yasr.
Buildirgs

Eouipment

TUITION FEES AND EDUCATION CONTRACTS

Scotland hore domicte lees

EU domicile fors

RUK coticite fees

Non-Eu domichia fees
Mon-credit boaring course fees *
Education contracts

Othvr {registration ard res fees)

Total
* retates 1o Short Courses and Junior Conservalole programmes

RESEARCH GRANTS AND CONTRACTS

Miscellaneous research grams and contracis

OTHER NCOME

income from front of house

Burdry noome

Ewropaan furded orojects

RCS works

QAA Incere

Wedering access ic the creatve ‘ndusiries grary

INVESTMENT INCOME

Irvesiment incoms on endowments

Othar rwsstment roome
Bark et

Annual Report for the Year Ended 31 July 2023

223 i)
£000 £000
12,868 12,221
298 268
77 76
54 54
370 372
253 253
2 2
13,923 13,244
2023 2022
£000 £000
&07 441
425 547
2,128 2,084
4,387 4,144
2781 2333
1,115 1,119
236 262
11,857 10 962
2023 2022
£000 £000
1 134
2023 2022
289 15
215 527
118 141
46 56
[} &
63 53
T 08
2023 2022
£000 EC00
75 81
273 216
78 3
L) 280
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Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

DONATIONS AND ENDOWMENTS

2022 2022

£000 000

Ureestricted donaticns i 68
Resricted denations 534 A%2
THE 708

Regiricted conations of 88K (2027 - £55K) relate to the redevelopment of part of the Rerfrew Strest Campus oudding, £100K funeng troon [EEEENENNSEIARNINNNNR o
a rumber of spectin prodects ard orogrammes 3070ss the Donservalors and 2 legacy of £403K 1o suppon Vooal studies

STAFE COSIS

The average ~umber of amployons expressed as E-lme equivalarts waes:

2023 202
Number Mumter
Serir managemert 10 10
Teaching staf 37 1
Teaching suppor 26 2%
Ressach grarts ang contracls 11 o
Crer support Sarinss s 19
Ausriestation end cerfral servioes 70 87
Premizes 53 &1
Othsr noome gerarating actvitios K i
&5 B0
2023 022
Statf cosis for the above persons £ £000
Wages and salwries 15810 14,790
seCurty Costs 1,414 1,327
it contritadions pad Nots 23 2.?1‘35 2,479
Persion 8t servoe Dost 15 2,186
Other staff costs 135 138
208509 208920
Serior managamend 1134 1,186
Teachirg stalf 12024 11 437
Teachirg supoort 1.288 1,572
Researcr grards ard condracts #i 31
Oither support servces 1.248 1,452
Admrastration end ceriral servces 2897 3,048
Premises 1488 1,588
Other reoms gersrating aotwitios 48 58
20809 20,820

Governoes’ saianes{ nohuied therein)
Sataries!sta’f mernbars) 386 366
Perion coriibutions 8% &
478 ag7

Tra mamber of Goverrors scorung benefils under persion schermaes during the yesr was 6 /2022 8)  Governors’ salsries sxciude FRS 102 persion sdiustments

£1
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Notes to the Fi ial § { inued)

STAFF COSTS {cortinued
Wey maragement persorrel

Key management personnel are tra serior managament team wha have authority for planieg, directing and contredfing the sctivities of the RCS Key management personre: nompnse:
pal, Deputy Priocipsl, Direcler of France and Estales, Diacter of Human Resowrces, Dreclor of Fair Access Diector of Music Dirsctor of Drama, Dange, Production and Fir
Drector of Exterral Reations; Urector of Busness Development, Dicector of Research and Knowedge Excharge, ana the Academic Registrar/Board Secrstary. Staff costs including
compenssion paid 1o key managemaer personrel as follows

2023 202
£000 £000
Totas {neadioy saaries, sovial secarity costs ard other benefits) 1124 1166

Tre Char was engliad to remuneration ot waived that ectitiement for 2002-23 Diher nor-staf Governors recelsed no remuneration T Principal who B 850 the higreat paid Governor,
reseved enohanents of,

2003 2023

Prociosl £000 2000
Saziaty 154 148
Persion contritntions s 34
Benefts o king” 7 £
156 188

Accreed sension as 21 37y 22 2
Accroed ump sum as st 31 by 2] 5%

* Benefils in kird relate to orivate medical insuoance

Tre ratic of tne remurseration of he Princpal 10 the medan salary of a RUS siaff member 5 319 (2022 3.19)  Tre ratio including sacary. berehts inkind and persion 8 329 (2002 329

Tra menber of Governors receving smokaments lexciuding pension comributons) falls o the iollowing rarges:

2023 2022
Number Mumber
£100,000 - £179.000 ) i
£450,001 - 120,000 - -
£120.00 - £130 000 - -
130,007 - £340.00C ) )
£180,007 - 150 000 4 .
£150,007 - £160,000 . !
£360,007 - £170000 1 .
There were ro sther Sereor Naragers receiing remunerstion {exchuding pension contrdations) sbove £100,000 who are rot Governos
TRAVEL ARD SUBSISTENCE
2023 2042
£050 £
Travel and subsistence - Board merbers 4 N
Hespiality - Boued memibers 0 &

The tots axperses paid 1o of on borall of Boord members was £9K (2022 - £BK) This ropresards ravel and subsistence sxponses ang hospitally sosts noured in sttending Board,
Caramidtes meetings a0 oher evenks i they offcial capacily
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Notes to the Fi al St {cantinued)
OTHER DPERATING EXPENSES
£C00 £
Tegching depariments 1,817
Cortracted-oul gonring services b
Teaching suppor serves 451
Other suppart sarviees 738
Acrainistration and coctral services by
General educstion 228
Premises costs 1,050
Repairs, renesals and mEnenane 319
Studert residences -
Ofwr income generating activities 481
Ageroy staffing cosls 186
Fension furd net interast {318}
Other expensss 368
6212 6,108
Dther operating expenses ohude 2023 023
£00 00
Auditors ramunernation Exerna: Audit 25 18
FRELP Contratt 3 Z
Mon-augi services 5 3
irdorng auwdt g 15
Oporatry; Bass renals Other than Lard and Buldings 467 AzC
TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Furrdfi/ Olhay
Freshold Lessehold Fitings! Stringec tAusican
Budldirggs Sasidings Egiprnant Insrumanis nstruments Triat
£030 £000 £000 £000 £000 £CA6
Cost or vaiuation
At * August 2022 30,281 11,837 k78R 959 £49 44,714
Addiions - - 653 - 51 704
Gisposals - {238y . (338
Rewvatugtiors - - - “ - -
ALTT duly 2073 381 11,837 5,103 Yoy LIS S0L80
Aggragate Deprociation
ALY August 2022 8860 1,886 5,035 A5 285 8,100
Dopraciation charge 3 132 286 10 6% k22
Dispossis “ - {3353 - - ek
Revakations - - “ «
A 3T iy 2023 9,222 1,697 5 0ES &8 284
Mat Book Vaiue
WEV at | August 2022 21421 9,972 73 Xt 254 33814
NEW 8t 31 Juey 2023 9,840 1,038 G4 36 33307

Tre RCS bullding o Rerfrew Street may 1ol be soky withd e prior approval of the Fles! tinkster of the Scottish Governmen, 10 whom the RCS is accountable for e sroveeds of the sale

Tre Alexsnder Gesn Opera School may rot be 5ok without the wiilten permission of Creatve Scotlandd. Inthe evert of 2 sale or duposal, Ureative Scollaral's shars of the procesds shat
be i direct proportion 1o the shore of the project costs ariginaily mst from the Lettery

45
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Notes to the Fi il Bt { j )
INVESTMENTS
Rchard Rose Pioroch Metwork Genaral Prise Piano
Fune Fund Fund Fund Furdd Totst Toal
s ] 2023 2083 223 W23 2323 02
£000 £000 2030 £000 £30C £000 £000
Marset vaue ot 1 August . - £,481 897 858 8,238 7,885
Addtiors 48 167 148 - . 394 3,432
Disposaly - - B - . - (Ba8)
Decrease & market value {1 i5) {472} {84} {81} {803 {443
Market value &t 31 Juy 48 92 8157 832 ] N 8027 8,236
Ligted Irvesiments 2023 023 2022 2022
Barket Karket
M Cest Value Cost
000 £000 £006 £000
Fised mtoras? siocks 2186 2628 2,181 2,424
Equiies 5841 5478 5,045 5,190
BL27 8008 8738 7,614
TRADE AND OTHER RECEVABLES
2023 2022
£000 £'006
Amounts tadfing dus witnn one year:
Traoe raceivablios 164 u3
Rucsivables dus from studets - net of prowsion for aoubtfl debts 28 220
Othar coconables 198 188
Prepayments and aconued incoms 425 765
1815 1 064
CURRENT INVESTMENTS
223 st g
£ 00 000
Shart term doposis 1,402 1,392
1 402 1 30

Deposits are heid with banks s building societies operating in e | oridos market and Bcansad by the Financial Conduct Authority wath o8 thsn theen months maturity st the Statemarnt of
Fingrwiad Positiory dale The interest rates for these deposis ars fued for the durgtion of the geposit of ime of placemenrt

ALy 2023 the weighted average interest of these fixed rale deposils was 0.95% per aroum gnd the remaining waigted average pericd for which the irtacast rale is fixed on ese
deposits was 3 morths. The fal vabue of these deposils was nat maberisdy derent from the sook valua,

CREDITORS | AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ORE YEAR

2323 2022
£300 £000
Trade payablos 316 378
Othwr crectons 35 7
Acnrgls and deferred ncome 1853 2.208
Loans B8 £6
2550 2,820
DEFERRED INCOME
Inchuded withi accruais sl defered woome are the foliuwing items of income which have been cdeferiesd Lt specilic periorm ance refated conditions have Desr net
023 2022
£1600 £000
Donatiors 18 7
Grart income 255 285
I i
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Notes to the Financial § (continued)

CREDITORS - AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

Daferred grant ncome
Loars

PUBLIC BENEFIT ENTITY CONCESSIONARY LOANS

Arrourts repayable within one yaer

AT OIS TEPRY AL DEDSEEN DNE SN WC YRETS
Amourts repayab'e behween theee and five years
Aeronans repayabie o five yaars of more
Aronges repayvable sfter sore hen one year

Forat public beraft ontity concassonary bans
Lencer
RCS irfrastructare Trust

PROVISIONS FOR LIABRITIES AND CHARGES

Batance 3t 1 Augus: 2022
Decreass in provision
Paidirstoasss

Balance at 31 July 2023

Amount
£1.885 200

Annual Report for the Year Ended 31 July 2023

2023 022
£000 £
18,853 17,108
1,154 1,220
18,007 18,328
2023 2022
£000 000
88 =]
66 &5
(S 132
G55 1,021
1,154 1,220
i) 1 3BE
Imerest rate % Borrower
Nil RCS
Persiong
£000
Ea¥
(42;
36
<5
eme————

Thie RCS provides enhacced persions te furmer enployens who scoepted warly 1eliterent and provision B made on an actusnial basis for the Fabiity (o those fareer empioyess at the time
of thisr reral A valuation of the Bxsting PENBIcn PrOVISION was carrieg ot al 31 July 2023 by Hymans Roberison, an indepsrdent firm of actuarss

ENDOWMENT FUNDS - PERMANENT

Batance ot T Awgrest 2022
aptal
Accumulated ncome

Ieome

Fures mlroducsd

Imvasimen nooma

{Lossiogun on sale of fvesimons
Decraase i value of pwestmens

Experitura

Prizes

Transfor (o urrasbicles rwerorves

o mset expenditure rourrsd

hanagerment fees

Transfer bebwoon Prize Furd and Unrestricted
Regarve

Bafaree at 31 July 2023

Reprasertsd by

{opiat
Aerwampiiated ncome

Currars ar nor-current asse! swesiments

& donation from Lows Steme Trast fo suppoent the impact and interdiscipinarity of the Pibrooh Networ
Prige Fuwis are hek! i trust and 8w el i make prizes to stedents at the RCS
Trg Prang Fund consssts of caplal gifs he noome fror woich cordribudes towards e leasing 2osts of the RCS's fleat

Prize Fung Brigw Furdd Piann Fund 2023 2022

Capitat irugme Capital Toia Total

000 2903 jarsy £000 2000

200 o] - BE2 1,888 1,783
- - 247 - 247 237
pEu] 36 247 [ 2,735 2015
“ 75 5 - 30 208

1 - 37 34 e &2
{55 (84) - &1} 11307 [l
S FET 268 B35 PRl 2,188
. - (20} - {20} {18)

- - {30 {30} (32

- - 4 4y i8] jS:1]

- - - - &
156 757 265 801 2045 2,135
“GE 787 - &0 1,784 1,888
- - 268 - 285 247
o8 78 2E5 i1 2048 2,135
185 787 2,045 2,435
1545 I ] 2,335

4%

of pancs
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Notes to the Fi tal S { inued)

¥

ENDOWMENT FUNDS - EXPENDABLE

2003 2023 2023 022
Fured trsssrumant Fund Tolal Total
£300 £000 £400 £000
Balaroe 8t 1 August 2022
Accumutaied mooma B3 5 88 &
&3 5 88 [3
income
Furdsicaptal riroduced ien] - 100 98
lpvesiment income . . . R
183 ) 1688 104
Expanditure
Transfer {0 deferrad capital grant - - " -
{rarsher to investments - - -
Tracsfar 10 urrestricted rasarves 1o mest axpecaiture incurred (53) {5 (58, {18}
Balance at 31 Juiy 2023 130 - 130 ;i)
Regrasentsd by
Accumulated incame 130 - 130 a8
130 - 130 88
Arglyss by assel
Cash are cash equivaients 130 - 130 8a
130 - 130 38

T TN - . i o mairtsin andior srhangs sctviies wini the Departmars of Ooers, Ballet Traaitona Song ard Jezz
The Irstourvent Fund comprises two donations which have been made 1o furd the purcnase of two collections of brass and woodwingd instrumerns

RESTRICTED FUNDS
RCS
Infrastructure Tra Rotertsen 2023 el

Other Vocal Studies Trust Trust Total Totst

£000 000 £000 £000 2000 £000
Balgroe al 1 August 2022 47 - - 179 ] FLa
ingume
Fundsicapita introtuced - 403 &6 - 485 116
Expandibure
Refease of restricted funds soent m the yosr (20 - (66) {9 {85
Total restocted comprehanshe inname for the your {203 A3 - {8 374
Balarwe at 31 July 2023 . 7 4w - 170 60

Oty rchudes The Bruce Witar Memonis Trust providing francial assistanse 1o emarging creative artsls, The Willam Grare Foundation for mproving the Studert Experience ant Skills
Busugh Technology ard Ecuipnent arg Dommunity Ckireach ang Johes Mathe Foundalion for the purchase of squinment aed sanport of & rureber of sevtes and prockactions

Tro Vocal Studies Fund represerts 8 egacy reced? in suppont of voral studies activiies

Tre donation from tre RCS Infrastnohiae Tnsl was uses in suppert of 2 capits) development

Tre Fobertson Trust furets mpreserd a dorstion which was used i support of & capital deveiopment

SHARE CARITAL
2023 2022
L3 £
raed
15,000 Oranary Shares of £ eacn 15,000 15,000
Alotted o aru g sy
7,284 Ordivary Shares of £1 wach 7.E84 7.E04
Abn fasue
O Ordinary Shares of £1 sach 300 00
TR THe

#H
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Notes to the Fi ial {continued}
LEASE OBLIGATIONS
2003 HIZE
Tre
Wihisky Mresival
Bord Btudent Instrements/ AV Total Vot
{Aschive} Agcomodation Cquipren
£000 £3C0 £000 £O00 £T00
Fudure manimum ease payments dus
Hot later ian 1 year 2 2,405 472 2350 1655
Lager than * yedr and rot later then 3 yesrs 7 9,825 e 10562 8,26
Later than § yaars and rot imter than 10 years . 5013 - 5013 3
Talel lease payments due 29 17.044 1403 18478 1 B0

Studard scoommedation

The Roysl Commervatore of Scatlars has a wasy arrangemens with BASE Glaagow OpCe Uia andd atis a8 an aoministrator £ relabion o student aseommmodaton rantal income in g peivate
o stucent accommodation facity 3t MoPhater Bt Gasgow ano widerarties any stortfall v the arvua cent. Tots! rents mcome from stutents for the yeer was £7 218K and wtad rest s
was £1,218K legving g balarce due to BASE Dlasgow Lid of £NI. The Jease is for & pericd of 20 years commencing on 14 September 2020 with @ break option exerciseabia by RCE aller 10
JORCS

2023 2022
Renta income 1218 1,157
RErie eosts 1218 p i
Mat cosis . {331

PENSION COMMITMENTS

Tre RCS's employess beong 10 tvee principa persior scnemaes; the Scovisn Teachers' Penson Scheme {STPS), Local Goverrymert Pension Scheme administerad by frw Srathchyde
Penzivn Fursd {SPF) which ave of the detined bersfit type, ard & defined contribution scheme - The Universiliss and Collsges Retrement Savings Schems (UCRSS)

Tre RCS also makes pansion paynents 0 former employees win have isken early retirement

T wled persion cost for the year was

2023 2022
£000 000
Contritasions to 8TPS 1.514
Cordributons 1o SPF 1885
Contritations to ULRES 1
Decrpase T perskon provisicn {42}
3 258

Tre actual cost of corirbutons paid by the ROS durng the year to e SPF was £1 170K
Trers were 1o culsterding corrindions peyaste a0 31 kdy 2023

Scottish Teachers' Pension Scheme

Tew ROS perticipstes o the Soottish Tenchary’ Ponsion Scheme The scheme is an wiundss stotdory public servics persion schsine with bensfis underwsitter by e UK Governmet. Ths
sermme i nanced by pavments fom emplowes and from hose ourent emplovess who are members of the scheme end paying contrltions st progressively higher marganal sates basss
o personabe poy, 55 spectisd in the o s % sed with refecsnee 10 & funding vahustion undanaken by the scheme atiuay. The Ias fouryearly
valuation was undariaken a5 8t 31 Meron 2006 This vaisstion informed an meresse in the empiyer contribuion rate from 17 2% to 23% of pensionabio pay from Septomber 2079 and an
ardnipaten yiski of B 4% empéovscs conlrinotions

e RCS has ro fapiity for other employers obligations o e mutbempioyes sctene. As the schene s wluded theee can be ro deficl on swpivs o distriteae on the windap of the
scheme o withodrawal from e stheme  The schems i s unhunced musti-smpioyer defined benefit scheme.

i1 @ aucepted et the schame can be esled or SCeounting purposes a8 § oefned cortrbution soheme i Groumstances where the RCS B uwetls ‘o idernlly 85 shure of the undeshyrg
assals and badilties of the schems

Wnite 2 vamtion was cardes ot s ot 37 Meren 2008 # % rot possitde to say whal deficll or surpius may affect fulurs contributions. Waork on the valustion was suspersied by the UK
Govarnment peraing the decision from the Court of Appeal (MoCloud tiudiciary schemeli@argeart (Frefighters’ Bcheme) cases) that held that the ensitions, prodectiors provided as part of
the 0TS reforms was unipwiilly disoriminated on the grounds of age Foliowing consuétation and an snnooncement i February 2021 on poposals 10 remedy the discrimiration. the UK
Goverrmard sonfirrved that the cosi cortro) dlomant of the 20706 valustions coud oe complated The UR Governmment has also asked the Governmerd Actuary o revisw whether . and 1o what
swtent, the cost onrtrol mechanism i mestng i's origingl objactives. The 2000 actusris) vabations will take the rapant’s findings o account. The inderim repart s complers [restrinted) and s
srrartly bonyg Posksad wah s cormuiation Abngside these anmouncements, the UK Sovamment confirmed that current amplayer confrinsion rates would stay nioree untd 1 Apel 2024

T RCS's evel of particpation in the scheme is 0 2% dased on the proportion of smployer contritations paid in 202122

&F
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Notes to the Fi al § { th d}

Swatholyde Pension Fundg

The Stathclyae Pansion Fund provides banefits on final pansionable salary for simployess of iocal goveramant and some ofhwr nstitutions

The turd 1s valued evary thres years by a profassionaly qualied ependent acluary using the projeciad unit method with the most recart compranansive vakation being prepared ss 3 31
March 2020 The rates of contribstion naynble are datermingd by the SPF Beard on the advice of the actuaries. In the infervening yoars the achuanes raview the progross of the scheme sne
prepare an interim valuation for the purpeses of reporting under FRS 102 as at the and of July  The empioyer cortriotion rale for the periud from 1 August 2022 to 31 July 2023 was 19 3%
of pay Tne empioyee conribution rate for the period from 1 August 2022 10 31 July 2023 was a vasiabe rale depencent on the lavel of salary ranging from 5.5% to 12%

Principa: actuara! sssumptions 8t the Statement of Financial Position date’

investment Returns
2023 2022
% %
Tota Retung from 1 August 2002 4o 31 Juy 72023 180 1o
Financial assumptions
2023 2022
% k.
Futre Pension increases 285 27C
Futre Salary inoreases 75 320
Discount rate 500 350
The RCS expects to cortribute £1,170K 1o its defined banafit persion plans i 2023724
Morality assumptions
The remaiving He axpectancies usad 10 determre benefit obligstons ars as follows:
Male Famale
Cuirerd pensiorers 149 1 yoars 22.0 yours
Future persioners .3 years 235 years
The major categories of plan assets as 3 percentage of stated plan assets are as follows:
2023 222
% %
Eaulties 1 80
Bonas 27 2
Proparty g 11
Cash 2 s

The far vare of the plan asse1s 2na tre rehun on those assals were as fofows:

48
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Nates to the Fi 1 S te { i <t}

g '}

Changes in the fair value of plan assels, defined benefit obligation and net lability

2023 Mast 2022 Net
(Linbility’! (L issitty)
Assels Obdigstions Aszet Aaset
U0 £000 £000 £030
Fair valee of emplover gasets 41,853 - 41 G5% 40 8851
Present vakue of furdes kabilibes - 32,664 {32,664, {48 4
Opening Position as at 31 July 2022 [EREE] 34664 § 788 77487
Senvics Cost
Cuprard Sarvice Cost - 688 {1,685 {3,246}
Past sarnce Cost - - - -
Total Service Cost - 1,685 {1,885} {3,246}
Mt irderas
irsrest income on plan assets 1,484 - 1,484 £57
trestest Cost on datned benett obigation - 1,168 (1,188} (798}
Total Net interest 1484 1,168 18 {141 ]
Totat defined benefit cost gnised in and expenditure 1,484 2,853 {1.36%) (3,387}
Castfiows
Plars paeticisarts cordebubions 377 vy - -
Empioyer contrindions 1470 - 1370 1080
Beneiis pad {607} {802} . -
Expected closing position 44,382 35,292 9,080 {10,078)
Re-mrogsuionents {actuanad losses)
Crangss i demographic assumplions B {837 437 “9.548
Cranges i feancial assumptions - 3,813} 8813 165
Orher grpanignes - 1883 {1 883; {135
Returr o0 assets exchding amounts inthioed m rst icderesl {B4) - (341 {244y
Total re recognised inother comprehensive
weme {B41) {8,387} 7,826 19,384
Far vakae of plen sssels 43,541 . 43,541 41 953
Prased vahue of funded fabiltios - 26,925 (26,528 {32 6843
Closing position as at 31 July 2023 43,541 76,825 15,618 5,268

¢ Tho defired bone® asset has been restricted 1o £nd in the Stalement of Fnancia? Position a3 the Conservaloire doss not have the &ights © 3 refund o 0 raguce s payments nlo the
pengion sehame

The Universities and Colleges Retirement Savings Schemse

The Universites avd Colleges Retrerent Savigs Scnerne provides 3 gefined cortibution permion schams which s open 1o 86 employses  Trg minimun pension contribazions for both
ampioyer 2vd employes is 5% The employver wil match an empioyess contribution up 10 5% There is ne cap 1o the level of employes contributons io the scrame

CAPITAL COMIATMENTS
2023 presisd
£000 000
Cormitrrants suthorised b not vel conrectad @t 37 July 483 -

The ghove reates to the mstaiation of solar pane's to e Redfrow Street and Walace Btudios campus buildings sng is partiely funced by an extermnal grant
CONTIMGENT UABILITIES
The Roya’ Conservarcre of Scotland 15 'n the process of sesling clarfcation sroud the classification of persionadle pay. A this stage # s "ot possible to guaniify the potertisl ability roris

thars certalnty e i would fall dus

The Royat Conservatoire of Scatlent % sware of he Supreme Courtt ruling in July 2022 on changes ‘o entitierment (o holiday pay AL this stage tis not possible to quantfy the polertial Babifty
nor %5 here certainty that & would fof duy

A
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Anruial Repert for the Year Ended 31 July 2023

Ouie 1o the natwre of the RCS's operstiors and the sompositos of the Board of Governors {peing drawn from public and private seclor organisstions n Scotlend) £ js ineviable tha
transactions will 1ake place with organisations i whicn & mercber of the Board of Goverrdrs may have an interest. Ali sransactions involving orgarisabons i which a member of e Board of

Governors may bava an interest are conducted 8t arr's lergth and In accordance with the RCS's francal regulations and rormal procursimant procedures

The Bogrd member g e sgnificant reatad pany ransactions wih thel sssocialed organisations ouwring the year 1o 31 July 2023 are detaiied beiow

Member Organisatior  Redationship

Hick Kusnssoerg Kile2iaamn Charman
David Haresick Kusrssberg/orothy il Hoyal Socisty  Comuttes
of Edinburgh  Mamber

Jo BuckleyPhilip Rodney Dunecit Chigf
Carson Eagoutive /
Bowrd
hember
Carg! Man Live Music Mos Dirsctor
Scotland
Carct Man The List Classical
Music Editer
Derihy Misl/Naci Pak-Shraz University of Professor
Edinburgh Emerits
Parsonal
Char
Jeffrey Sharkey ABRSM Boara Member
Jestray Sharkey Currnook Tryst Boara Member
Jefirey Sharuey Waels Governor
Caheda
Sarool
Jeffray Sharasy Conservatores Governos
UK
Leds Fuoh Sistema Board Member
Scotlard
W Fanbrother Harriaon Trustes
Parrott
Fourdation
Ker: Fateother Mational Youth  Trastes
Orchastras of
Seotignd
Kan Fairtbrother Bt Marys Music Director
Serood
Jesr Bacgster Dorwied Dowar Trustse
Arts Awarcs

DISCRETIONARY AND CHILDCARE FUNDS

Balaros unspent &t ¢ August 2027
Repaut durng the yosr

Afocabon recoived n year
Expernfifure

Bataws wapsnd 8t 31 July 2023
Repayable 95 claw back

Sates 1o Purchasas fam Ayrourns owed Amounts
Grant Recevac wwﬁ‘z" \ e gt from relaed cwed 10
Fnd party e Fanty parly ralates party
£ - £ 3,120 £ i 1,860 £
£ « £ 19,888 £ £ - £ -
£ - £ 741 £ 180 £ £
£ - € 3,702 £ £ £ .
£ - £ - £ 1,560 £ £
£ - £ 706 £ - £ £
£ £ 187,508 £ 23,385 £ £
£ £ 1LE £ £ £
£ £ - £ 580 £ £
£ - £ 8741 % ~ £ £ -
£ - £ - £ 3052 £ - £ -
£ - £ - £ 240 £ - £ -
£ - i 1,738 £ - £ 464 £
£ - £ ] £ - £ £
Suxiert Jurg 2021
Emergency Covia 19
Chiuere Discreronary Furwd rardatip Total
£ £ £ £ £
268 {368) Loved Loeies
. - - 1422} (422)
7323 g2 9263 48,138
{12,834) {26 805} - . {39 438
15,243 LNES) R (R
(5,243 4739 9.203 - 8,694

Geants for decrstonary ard chidoare funds @re avadabie sclely %o shudents: the RUS acts only as paying agert The grants and related disbussemens are hersfore exchulded from e

COMPIENENS G NOOME and eaperoilune sooourt



28 UE CEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE

I satisfactior of i

¢
]

siuderts’ scoess 1 US federal fnanais! and, RCS is reguired, by the US Depaniment of Eaqucation, to pressnt the following Supplementst Schedule ina

proscribed format The amouns presented within the schedules have tesen - prepared under the Ristorical cost convertion, subject 1o the revaluaton of cenan ficed asssty] - prepared wsing United

Kongdom gemrally accepted SCCHITING Pracice, 1 accordance with Frarcial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102} ana the Staterrart of Recommanded Practics Actourting for Further and Higher
Education (2015 adivon), - presented in pourds stering The schedules sel ol how sach smourd disclosad has Deen extracted from the finarvial stetements As set oul above, the scoourting

prinas uea n determining the smounts disciosad ae not

anded 10 ard do net comaly with the requirerants of accounting prirciples generaly accepiad in the United States of America The aim

of ths schedues 1 to suppart RCS s menting the roquiremarts of the US Departmant of Education's Federal Loan scheme, and rof the requiraments of the SORP; the schedule does nol forrm pan

of the BORP

Primary Reserve Ratio:

Page Note
a8 W noke
A5edf 19420
A+ 18420
48 20
43 11
43 11
A7 23
17
44 17
3 Mo rote
47 3
N note
Equity Ratio:
35 N note
35 Mo oty
35 No note

Net Income Ratio:

35 Mo rote
33 No role
33 Nerode

Staterut of fnarcia’ positon

Erdowment funds - Permarsnt and
arviover art furds - experdabs

Erdowment fuds - Peomanent arsd
andowTont funds - oxpendabe
Restices furds

Tangivie Fixad Assels

Tangioie Fixed Assels
Pension Commimens
Pubrbe Berdit Eraty Corcessionary Losns
Oubfe Benft Ertity Corcessionary Loans

Swe Dolow

Staternent of Comprebersive incore -Total

Expardifure
Fension Lommiments

Staterrent of Cornprahensive oume -LOsS

an deposal of feed assels

Statement of Financial Posiion - Tols)

reserves lass resticied restrves roled oekow

Staterront of Financial Postion - restricted
geyes

Siatermnent of Financial Posiiion -mon coreent

assels + curerd assels

Staterrant of Financial Postion - Tota! net

assels oss resviced reserves 2023 vs 2022

Staterrent of Comprebensive Income - Total
income #Ss restnied somprebensive reome T
for he yearsgaing on regises e wwoaliced

Fwestmants

Staterran: of Comprebansive irsome - Total

e

Experdsble Nat Asgats
Net Assets withoul donor reslrictions,

Net Assets with donoe restrictions,

Tarm EncowTents with donot resticions:

het Assets wilh coner restricticns. restricted n perpeluily.

Mot Assets with donor restrictions: Other for purpoae or time:

Property, pare and equipment, net (nciutkes Construction in progress ang
Capital leases)

Property, plart and squipment - pre-moiementation [rciudes Capital
Leases;

Property, plart and equipment- post-enplareriauon without outstandgng
dent for origing ourchase

Postempoyment and pension Habiitios:

Long-terrn debt - [ g v putposes

Long-term gabl - for loog torm purposes pre-mplemeantation;

Long term debt - for lorg term purposss post-mpiamentation:

Torgl Exponses ar! Losans

Toud Expenses and Losses withow gonor restrions:

Towal Experses withtu! dondr restrictions - iaken dirsctly from Slatement of
Aivties
Other components of net periodic persion costs!

{ther Losses

Modified Mot Assss.
“Nat AsSets without dono pesirictions:

"Net Assets with dono restristions
hiodding Assets:

Tolal Asseals.

Charge in Nt Aszets Withawt Doror Resirictiors:

Change in Net Assets Withowt Doror Restrictions:
Towal Revenues and Gaine:

otal Renvenues ard Gairs withowt donos rastoctons:

Totat Operating Reverns ane Oher Additoes (Gains
rwastment returmn spprogristed for sperding

Gars onrasised and uvagised pwestmerts  No-Opersting Revenug and Other Gairg,

@

(846}

v

28070
{10078

@

26,033

2448

50,042

7854

25,855

26,248

(393






